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Kenya lndustrial Research and Developmenl Institule (KIRDI)
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended 30," June 2023f I. ACRONYMS, ABBREVIATIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TERMS

A: Acronyms and Abbreviations

CEO

DG

ICPAK

IPSAS

NT

OAG

PFM

PPE

SAGAs

SC

CS

Chief Lxecutive Officer

Director General

lnstitute of Certified public Accountants of Kcn}.a
International Public Sector Accounting St andards
National Treasury

Office of the Auditor General

Ilublic Finance Management

Property Plant & Equipment

Semi-Autonomous Government Agencies
State Corporations

corporate Services

B: Glossary of Terms

Fiduciary Management- Nrembers of Nlanagement directly entrustecr *,ith tht,responsibility of financial resources of the organization.

Comparative Year- Means the prior period.

2. KEY INSTITUTE INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

(a) Backgroundlnformation

The Kenya Industrial Research and Development Institute (KIRDI) is a staturo ryresearch organization established under KIRDI Act (2022). KIRDI is the count ry Sprincipal national institution responsible for industrial research and develoPment anddomiciled under the Ministrv of Investments, Trade and Industrv. It is mandated tocarry out research and development in industrial and allied technologies including,civil engineering, mechanical engineering, textile technolo y, electrical engineering,
- --amnmg;TowerIes ourceq chemicaFerrgin eering,irfuriakh ood tecimology;emistry;-f

ceramics, informa tion and communications technologies (lCT). The Institute's missionis to undertake Industrial Research Technology and Innovation and disseminatefindings that will have a positive impact on national development.

(a) PrincipalActivities
The principal activity of the lnstitute is to undertake Industrial Research, Technologl,and Innovation and disseminate findings that wi have a positive impact on nationaldevelopment.

lll



Kenya Industrial Research and Development Institute (KIRDI)

Annual Reports and Financial Statemenls
For the year ended 3O'i June 2O23

1(b) Key Management
ihe Institure's day-to"day management is under the following kc1'organs:

. The Office of Director General

. lndustrial & Allied Technology Rest'arch Direclorate

. Technology Transfer and Exlension Sen'ices

. Corporate Services Directorate

. Strategy and Planning Directorate

. Legal Services Directorate

Ke emenl
Responsibility Name

(c) FiduciaryManagement
The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30'n

June 2023 and who had direct fiduciary responsibilit)' wcrc:

Director General I)r-ln Calvin On an o

Dr. Nlartha lnduli
Dr. Francis Polo
Dr. Josephine N.
NIandere,OGW
NIr. Nicodemus Mutinda
I\ls. I\{aureen Cho o
I\tr. Stanle Abon o
NIr. Nlark Sicha
NIs. J ane W. Kamenwa
Nlr. Thomas Kazu

(d) Fiduciary OversightArrangements

The Board works through various sub-committees which include; The Research

teihnology and Innovation Committee, Finance and Special p'ojects Committee, Risk

and Audit tommittee, Human Resources and Administration Commiltee

S/No.

I
2 D I d al & AIh d T hn I Researcho oCerl en u tsot rI er c

Transfer and Lxtension ServicesDirector- Technolo3
4 Director - Corporate Services

lianceand Com, PlanninDirector - SIrate5

6
7

Director - Le al Services & Co rate secrel

tnmeeaanhC nAI t\ot Sr u II ant Dt EClrSA s S

fo If ec ran eR os ru ecumal HnPri cl
AI du Ir In rne aant D rI Cte osA ssl

Assistant Director - Finance
8
9
t0

MEMBERSNAME OF THE COMMIT'TEE
1. Prof. George Thiong'o
2. Irlr. Stephen Situma
3. I\tr. John H. o. ogwang'
4. Nlr. Roy Getusi NYangena
] Nfs. Joyce-M. NJogu
. Dr.-lng. Calvin OnYango

(Chairperson)

6

Research, Tcchnology and Innovation
committee

Dr. Eng. David Nduhiu
Ir,[r. Stanley Maina Kagera
N{r. Roy Nyangena
Ms. Catherine Bu nYassi-K ahuria

I
?
3
4
5

(Chairperson)

l)r.-ln o. Calvin On an

Finance and Special Projects
Cornmillee-

IV
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Risk ancl Audit Committee I
2
3

{

I\lr. Joh
Eng. Lu

(Chairperson.ln H. O. Ogwang'
cy Nlutinda

I)rof. George Thiong'o
NIr. Stanle)., Maina Kagt,ra

Human R
Commilt(

esource and
'e

Administration I\ls. Joyce Njogu
Dr. Eng. David N

I
2

3

l
5
(i

(Chairperson)
duhiu

l\rs. Catherine Bunyassi-Kahuria
Dr.-lng. Calvin Ony.ango
Eng. Lucy Nlutinda
NIr. Stephen Situma

Research Technology and Innovation Committee
This committ('e consisted of six members- The committee ,,,as chaired by prof. GeorgeThiong'o' orher mcmbers of.the c;ilI;;';&r.d Mr. srephen siruma, irlr. Jotrn no oswans', I\rr' Ror Gerrr5i f{v1ngs";, iiir.l;;;;'[i*:oe, and Dr.-rns. carMn onyango.It had a responsibirit'r., o,rers"efhe rnrtituiJ'. ,...arch project planl, Tcchnology andRescarch. Ir atso n,viewed p..j.;i p;;;;;;iJ. ''"''

Finance and Special projects Committee

This commitee consisted,of five rnembers. The committee was chaired by Dr. Eng.Da'id Nduhiu orhcr memberr 
"f i;;-a;;;iii".i"ara"a r\rr. sranrey lrrairiu rage.u,N'lr. Ro) Nyang.na, Nrs. Carherine B;;y;;;_il;;.iu'"nO Dr.-rng. Catvin onyango. Thiscommi.ce had o'ersight on alt financiiil.ir"r-#rrairc b;;;;;, i;rrr.,t1,"po.,,ngproccss and ( onrrors' and procurem.nt. if 

"rLo' 
rer.lewed proposars for capital

|.:'..*"IH:X;,r,,? ,nXof",jiJ, 
tr," corn_ii,#'"rpp.rir"d capiral budgers for

Risk and Audit Commitree
This Conlmittee consisted of four members. The Committee was chaired by IvIr. John H.o' ogrvang'. orher memberr of ili" 

-a;;mirree 
included, Eng. Lucy Mutinda, prof.George Thiong'o, 

-Mr 
sranrey uuinu rrg..u. tt r,ua ,n oriiligil ,".ponribiriry ofrevterving, asst'ssing adequacy uno monii.rnng of internal conlro]s, risk managemcnt

:13,:1#f[;1:L*:ii::.iJ:.u.i"s;"","Lming inrernar ana eiiernar audit ieports

Human Resources and Administration Committee
This Committee consis ted of six members. The Commrttee was chaired by Ms. JoyceNjogu. Othcr mcmbers of the Committee included Dr. Eng. David Nduhiu, Eng. LucyMutinda, IUs. Catherine Bunyassi-Kahuria, N{r. Stephen Situma and Dr .-Ing. CalvinOnyango. It was responsible for human resource matters including recruitment,succession management, monitoring and appraising the performance of seniormanagement, includin g the Direc t or-G en era I, reuew of the Human Resources policies,re\.rew of gcneral admrrustrative and procure
communication poli CI CS.

ment policies and oversight of corporate
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e) Institute'sHeadquarters
P.O. Box 30650 00100
KIRDI South C CamPus
Popo Road, off Mombasa Rd
NAIROBI, KENYA

lnstitute's Conracts

one: (2 5{) 02023882 I6Teleph
E-mail: en al@r e

Website: www.kirdi.so.ke

f) Institute's Bankers

1. National Bank of KenYa
KEBS South C, PoPo Road Branch
NAIROBI, KENYA

2. Absa Bank of KenYa
BunYa)a Road Branch
NAIROBI, KENYA

g) IndePendent Auditors

Auditor General
Office of Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, University Way

P.O. Box 30084
GOP 00r00
NAIROBI, KENYA

h) PrinciPal Legal Adviser

The Attorney General
State Law Office and Department of Justice
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 40112
City Square O0200
NAIROBI, KENYA
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Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended 3O,', June 2023

3. TTIE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DIRECTOR PROFILE

Dr. Mwinzi was Appoinled on 8,t' October 2O2l for
Ihree-year ternr.

Mr. Nyangena was Appointed as Director on 2,,, March

Dr. Mwinzi holcls a Doctorate of philosophl.rr.r Erlucational
Commllnicatiotr & Tcchnologl., a Nl;sler's I)r,grt.t, rn
I'hilosolthl,ancl Religion and a Bachelor ol [clucaririn (..rrrs)
Degree. Shc is a nrt,mbcr ol the Kenl'a Associalton of I)ublit.
Adrninistration ancl Irlanageme nt (K.AP.ANI). ( urrt,nl l1 , sht,
serves as thr Vice Chancellor of LAG East t 1ni\ (,rsili.

With e\tensive e\pericnce in leaclcrship ancl rnanagt,nrt,nr
rolcs rvithin Ihe Public Sector, Dr. Nlrvinzi has (l(,ltionslt.ate(l
eNpertise and clcdication throughout ht,r r.areer. pror.ir>rrsl1 

,She has held positions including principal Sccretary an(l
Director State Department of Vocational & l.ccilnical'Iraining, Director of youth Training, LcctLlrer, l)eput). I)eanof Students and Assistant Dean ol students at l\loi
Lhiversit),as rucll as a High School Teacher.

.l

I
Dr. Dinah Mwinzi, phD, CBS
- (lhair 0l tho Bonrd ol'
Dircctors

Mr. Roy Gerusi Nyangena
Nternalc Nlember Io tht'
Principal Socretary, Stat e.

Department of
lndust rializat ion

2^O22, for a three year term as Ahernate lo the principal
Secretary, Ministry of Industrialization

Mr. Nyangena holcls a l\Iasters Degrec in l{ural Econornrcs
and a Bachelor of Commerce. He serves as tho Dcl)ul).
Director of Industries at the State Department for lnclu.strl:,
within the IVinistD,of Investments, 'Iiatle ancl Incluslrl,.

Throughout his carcer, NIr. Nyangena has clemonstralccl
rxpertisc ancl leadership in VarioLls rolcs. Ht, has prtviousll.
servt'cl in thc East African Communit) AI'lairs, oversrt,ing
Continental Free Trade Area Alfairs and reprcst,nted tht,
State DL'partment for Inclustrl,in bilateral matiers.

\41
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DIR-ECTOR

Ms. Bunyassi-Kahuria was Appoinle
Jrtly 2022 for a three year lerm as Alternate to Attorney
General

Ms' Bunyassi-Kahuria holds a l\lasters degree in
Intellectual Property from Africa Llniversity Iuutare,
Zimbabwe, a Ir{asters Degree of Arls in International
Studies from the Institute of Diplomacl'and lnternational
Studies from the University of Nairobi, a Bachelor of Laws

degree (LLB) from the Universit) of Pune, lndia. Currently
shd holds the position of Chiel state Counsel in the
lnternational Law Division of the Office of the Attorney
General and Department of .lustice.

With over 23 years' experience, I\ls. Bun)'assi-Kahuria is a

seasoned professional in insolvencl larr', international
relations and diplomacy and lntellectual property law.

d as Director on 4"

Ms. Catherine BunYassi -

Kahuria
Alternilto to the Attorney
General

Mr. Stanley Maina Kagera
Alternate Io the Principal
Secretary, The National
Treasury & Economic
Planning

Mr. Slephen Muldtcbi-
Situma
Alternate to Director-General
NACOSTI

PROFILE

Mr. Kagera serves as Alternate lo the Principal Secretary,
National Treasury & Planning

With a IUasters Degree in Economic Policl' Irtanagement and
a Bachelor of Arts in Economics, Ntr. Kagera brings a wealth
of knowledge to his role. He also holds a Certificate in
Project Management, Productivity Nlanagement from U.S.n' 

;

and a Young Professional Course Certificate on Iuacro I

Economic res-earch from KIPPRA among other certificates.

Throughout his career, IUr. Kagera has held key positions, I

including Economist roles in various Government offices
such as Deputy Director aI lhe National Treasury 

-and
Planning, Ministry of Health and Policl' Analyst in the Office 

I

of the Prime Minister.

Mr. Situma was ApPointed on 8'h MaY
year term or until the term of the curre

in Monitoring and Evaluation. He is a Ir{ember
Chemical Society, Evaluation Society of Kenya
NEMA Lead Expert and member of Environment In

2O23, for a tluee 
1

nr board expires. I

Mr. Situma holds a Master of Science in Applied Chemistry,
ucation and a ?ostgradua@

of Kenya
and is ar
stitute ofl

Kenya

With over
management,

20 years' experience in
Mr. Situma has served

research and

\1ll

in various
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DIRECTOR PROFILT:

organizat ions anrl rt'search
lhe ;;osition of Senior Itc
Cornrnission for Scienct,,
(N,ACOSI'I).

rnstrtlltions. Currentll, he holds
search Anal)st at the National'l-echnologl ancl InnoYation

as Direclor on 24,h August 2022Ms. Njogu was Appointed
for a three year term.

, r:

-
5

Ms. Njogu hokls a Nlaster of Business Administratjon
(Slrategic l\lanagement) from the llni\,crsjly of Nairobi andBachclor of Erlucation Arts from ltoi Llnivcrs)t).
Additionallr, she possesses a post graduate diploma fronr
thc Chaltert'rl Inslitule of Nlarketing ancl she ii a certilieti
Accountanl (ACC.A). She is a nrernbcr of se\.eralprofcssional organizations including the lnstitllto ol
clirectors, Nlarketing society of Ken1,a, Association of
Sustainabilil) Pra(itioners of Ken1,a (.ASpK) and rhe Kcn).a
Institute of J\lanagement.

./
,+_a

Ms. Joyce M. Njogu
Designated Represent al iYc of
Ken),a Association of
Nlanufacturcrs. She ]ras over l0 ) cars' e\perience in business development,

nrarkeling and sustainability. N,ts. Njogu currentll, s"ivc, us
ttrc Heacl of Consulting and Businesi development at Ken1z3
.Association of l\ I an u fa ct urers.

Eng. Mutinda was as Director appointed Director on 23', I

August 2O22 for a three year term

Eng. Lucy Wanjiku Mutinda
I)esignated Rt,presen tative of'
Consumcr Fccleration of
Ken

Eng. Mutinda holcis a Bachelor of Technologl. (produclion
Engineering) from lr{oi University as wt,ll as i'Certificatc rnInternational Leadership & l\lanagement and a Diploma in
Sustainable Business & Responsible Leadership.

As an Environment Engineering ancl project l\lanagement
expert, Eng. Nlutinda has demonstrared Icaclership ancl
e\pertjse in. her field. She is the founcler and CEO of
Ecocl cle Limitecl, where she Ieads initiatives armerl at

a

rD

E
romotlng sustainability and responsible business
racticrs.

l\
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DIRECTOR PROFILE

Mr. Ojwang' was appointed Director on 4'n July 2O22 for a

Mr. John Henry OnYango
Ogwang'
l)t'signat cd l.((' pr('sentativc of
Ken\ a In(lusl Iial l)ropertl'
lnsl il uI e.

Prof. George Thiongo
lndcpendent Nlember of the
Boarcl ol l)irect ors

three year term.

lnduslrial Pro crt Insl itule (Kll'l).
Prof Thiongo was apPointe
2OZl for a three year terms.

d as Director on 8s October

Mr. Ojwang' holcls a Nlast('r's clcgree in Busint'ss
Aclministration from Stralhmore Business School antl a

Bachelor of Commercc l)egrce from the Universit) of
Nairobi. rclditionalll', Hc has completed the advanced
Iuanagcment Programme course ill IESE Business School,
Inrernltional Graduate school of management, universit) of
Nilvarra Spain. NIr. Oj$'ang'is a Nlt'nrber of Kenl'a lnstilute
of managemenl and Institute of Directors.
\l ith a \;alth of experience in leadershill, management and

Intellectual propert)' Illetlters, Nlr. Ojwang'has sen't'd as a
Board membcr for the Anl i-Counterleit Authorit) and
participatcd in various commlllees. Currently, ht' holds the
position of Acting Nlanaging Director at the Kt'n}a

He holds a Doctorate in Chemistry" a Nlasters of Science

Degree in Chemistry and a Bachelor of Education Degree in
Sciince. Throughout his career, I)rof. Thiongo has held
various esteemed positions including Professor, Locturer,
Church Lcader, Principal and l)ean at the Lhiversit)'. He

has also sen'ed as Chairman of a department \lithin the
University and on the Board of the Institute of En\ironment
and Energy Technologl'.

Prof. Thiongo is renorvned for his contributions to
academia, including the development of nerv acadt'mic
programs. He has receivecl academic honors such as

iecognition in 'Who is Who in Scicnce and Engincering in
the World, 2O0I', the Association of Commonweallh Staff
Scholarship from August-f)ecember 1999 and Teaching
Assistantship Awards fronl Ken)ratta llniversity, 1982-1988'

x
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Dr. Eng. Nduhiu was appointed Director on 29,h October
2OZl for a three year term.

He hokls a Doctorate of Business Administration (DBA)
Honoris Causa from Ihe Commonwealth Universit)., a
Nlasters in Leadership and Irlanagement and a Bachelor of
Science in Civil Engineering. Dr. Eng. Nduhiu has a rich
historl of Ieadership and entrepreneurship, har,tng serr,ed
as Chairman of Devcon Group Limited sincb 2003 and as
the founder of Kirethi Constrllction Company, Linited in
1980. Aclditionally, he has contributed to the health care
sector as Vice Chairman of the Kenya Nledical Tratning
College. He is also a member of the European Federation of
National Engineering Association.

DIRECTOR

Dr. Eng. David Nduhiu
Independent Irlember of the
Board of Directors

Dr. -Ing. Calvin Onyango
Director-General / Secr0tar) 10
the Board

Onyango was appointed Director-General

Dr.-lng. Calvin Onyango holds a PhD in Bioprocess
Engineering from the Institute of Food Technology and
Bioprocess Engineering, Technische Universitaet Dresden,
Dresden, Germany; he also earned N{asters and Bachelor's
Degrees in Food Science and Technology from the
University of Nairobi, Kenya.

With extensive research experience in Food Science and
Technology, Dr.-lng. Onyango has made significant
contributions to the field. He has aulhored numerous
publications in peer reviewed scientific journals and has
been an active participant in research conferences and
workshops. His ability to secure funding for research
projects through compelling proposals is noteworthy,
having successfully fundraised extensively.

*lng. Onyango +esea+eh---+*ork has--garnered wide
recognition, evidenced by its extensive citation and
numerous awards received in appreciation of his
contributions to the body of research in food science and

Dr.{ng. Calvin
on 66 June, 2022

technolo

\r
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DIRECTOR

4. MANAGEMENT TEAM 2022/2023

PROFILE

Ms. Chogo is a highly qualified professional ruth a diverse
educational background. She holds a l\laster's degree in
Business Administration from I Iniversity' of Nairobi, a
Bachelor of Laws degree from NIoi thi\,ersiIy and a Post
Graduate Diploma from the Ken)a School of Larv.
Additionally, she is a certified Public SecretaD, and a

Ccrlified Trust ee.

As an Advocale of the High Courl of Ken1,a and
Corporation Secretary, Ir{s. Chogo possesses e\tensive
knowledge and over l5 years of Professional erperience in
the practice of Law. Throughout her career, she has held
various leadership positions in Ihe public seclor,
demonstrating hcr exceptional skills and expertist in legal
matters.

IVs. Chogo is actively involved in prolessional 
]

organizations, including the Inslilute of Cerlilied
Secretaries of Kenya (ICSK), the La\v Sociel)' of Xenl'a and
the East African Law Society, whcrc she conlribules to the
Legal community and stays abreast of industry
developments.

PROFILE

Dr.-Ing. Calvin Onyango was appointed Director-General
6'b June, 2022

Dr.-Ing. Calvin Onyango holds a PhD in Bioproc s

Engineering from the Institute of Food Technologl, 3..1
Bioprocess Engineering, Technrsche Universitaet Dresden,
Dresden, Germany; he also earned l\lasters and Bachelc s
Degrees in Food Science and Technology from thc lJnivers /
of Nairobi, Kenya.

With extensive research experience in Food Science a I
Technology, Dr.-lng. Onyango has made significant
contributions to the field. He has authored numer( s

blications in peer reviewed scientific journals and has b€ 1

an active participant in research conferences and workshops.
His ability to secure funding for research projects throu r
compelling proposals is noteworthy, having successfu t

1

Ms. Grace Maureen Chogo
Corporation Se( r('l ar)'/Dircctor
Legal Serviccs

MEMBER

Dr. -Ing. Calvin Onyango
Dfr( lor-Gencral / Secr0tar), to
the Board

xll
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Dr. Martha K. Induli
Dir('cl ()r Research Tcr.hnohgl
and lnnovalion

Dr. Francis Polong Director,
Technology Transfer and
L\tension Services

Mr. Nicodemus Mutinda
Dlrector, Co rate Services

fundraisetl cxt en sir cl1

Dr.-lng. Onl ango research work has garnered wide recognition
eridencecl b) its e\tensive citation ancl numerous arvarclr
received in appreciation of his contributions to the boclv o1
research in foorl science and technology.

Dr. Induli holds a Doctor of philosophl, (Natural products
Chemistr).') from Nlakerere Llniversil),, a Nlaster's of Scienct
(Chemistry) from llniversity of Nairobi and a Bachelor ol
Science (Chemistrl ) degree from IUoi Lhiversjty. She is a
member of the Natural products Research Ne$vork for Easterr
and Central Africa (Ken1,a Chapter).

She is 
- 
an e\pert in plant and IUicrobial Natural product.(

research and has ot er 20 ),ears' e\periencc in lhe fjeld.

Dr. Polong holds a phD in Climate S),stems and Climate
Change from Nanjing Universit), of Information Science and
Technology, China; a Masters in Environmental Health from
Nloi Universitl'; and a Bachelor's Degree in Chemistry from the
University of Nairobi, Kenya. He has also undertaken a numberof 

. specialtzed training courses in Xen1,3, China, th€
Netherlands, and Nlalaysia. His research interests include land.
hydrology-ecosystem-climate interaction, land surface
processes, watershed modeling, climate change, watershed
hydrology, inregrared watarshecl managlment, and
Environmental Sustainability.

Mr. Mutinda holds a Master's of tsusiness Administration
(IUBA)- in S-Irategic l\lanagement from Ken),atta University,
Bachelor of Technology in Textile Engineering from Ir{oi
Universit), and is a certified euality Nianagemenr Systems
auditor.

He has more than 15 years of experience in Business processes
Re"ergrneerirg;-fuuct Devehopment, eual ity +,tanagernent
Systems, Performance Ivlanagement and project ivtanagement.
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Dr. Josephine N. M.
Akama,OGI{
Director Corporat e Scrvices

Ms. Grace Maureen Chogo
Corporation Secretary,/Director
Legal Services

{.:
:,

Dr. Akama Holds an HonoraD, Doctorate Degree ln
Humanities from Graduate College and Seminary Internatio- 1l
(USA), a Nlasters of Business Administration (l\lBA) in Strat( c
I\tanagemcnt from University of Nairobi and B. Com (Final--e
option) from Catholic University of East Africa.

She is a qualified accountant with CPA (K) and a member rf
lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants (ICPAK), Kenva
Institute of Certified Public Secrelaries (lCS) and Associatior f
women Accountants of Kenya (AWAK). She is also a trait t
Chaplain. She has a wide experience in Finance, Accounting,
l\lanagement & Golernance having served in various leaders p
and managerial positions in both public and private sectors.

Ms. Chogo is a highly qualifiecl professional with a diverse
educational background. She holds a Ir{aster's degree 'n
Business Administration from lJniversity of Nairobi, a Bache r
of Laws degree from l\toi University and a Post Gradu-.e
Diploma from the Kenya School of Law. Additionally, she i' a

cerlified Public Secretary and a Certified Trustee.

As an Advocate of the High Court of Kenya and Corporation
Secretary, NIs. Chogo possesses extensive knowledge and o' r
15 years of Professional experience in the practice of Li .r.

Throughout her career, she has held various leadership
positions in the public seclor, demonstrating her exceptio. tl
skills and expertise in legal malters.

Ms. Chogo is actively involved in professional organizatio i,
including the lnstitute of Certified Secretaries of Kenya (lCS ),

the Law Society of Kenya and the East African Law Society,
where she contributes to the Legal community and st, s

abreast of industry developmenls.

Mr. Abonyo holds a Nlasters of Accounting and Busin"s
Statistics degree from Rajasthan v. University India i I
Bachelor of Commerce (Accounting Option) degree from .-,e
same Universiry. He is a qualified accountant with CPA (K) and
a rn ember of 

- 
In sll tul e oI-C ertilie cf hbli c Aaco-u n t-ant s (ICP, :I

and also a Certified Pension Fund Trustee (Kenya). He has a o

attended several continuing professional development
programmes including leadership and integrity training, put c
inance management and Senior lUanagement Cqurse fr( I

Kenya School of Government (SNIC)

He has over fifteen (15) years' experience in finance
rivate sector.

t
ained inAccountin
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Mr. Stanlcy Abonyo
r\ssistanl Ilir('ct{)r-Fin n( c

Mr. Kazungu holcls a Nlaster's clegree in Business
.'\(lnrinistralion (llltA) in Financr option from.lomo I\rn)a(ta
t lniversil) ol Agriculture ancl llachelor of BusinL,ss
I\laniigenrenl clegree (Accounting OpIion) from NIoi Llniversit),.
Ile is a cltraliliccl accounlant h,ith CPA (K) and a member of
Instilut(, ol' ( t.rtif iecl Public Accountanls (ICPAX). IIe has
atlencled St'nior Nlanagement Coursc from Ken),a School of
(ioYcrnrnenl (Sl\lC).

lle has olcr liftcen (15) )'ears' e\perience in finance and
..\ct ounting gaincrl in public sector.

Ms. Kanrenwa holds a BBA (HR) from the Kenya IVethodist
llniVersrl) (Kt.\lt') antl a Diplonra in Business Nlanagemenl
(AB[-[]K). She is a member of Institule of Human Resource
Nlanagcnrent ancl nn Associate Nlenrber of Association of
llusiness E\rcuI iVes (tlK).

Shc has unclergone several short-term training programmes
cluring hcr rvork experience including Senior lUanagement
(lotrrse (SIrlC). She is a Certifiecl Human Resource Practitioner.

Mr. Thomas S. Kazungu
.\g. Assislanl I)ir('( lor, InI('rnirl
.\u cli I

Ms. Jane Kamenwa
Principal I Ium n Rosourct
Officer
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5. CHAIRPERSON'S STATEMENT

on behalf of the KIRI)l Board ol Directors, I am clelightetl to presenl thc' KIITDI
statemcnt of Accounts for Financial \ear zo22/?o23. During the fjnancial 1.ear Kllu)l
plal ed a key role in clriving the manufacturing agenda ol Kcn) a Viiion 2030.
Specifically, KlltDI developed technologies for ralue acldition to agricultural ancl
natural materials and transferrecl these technologirs for conrm.,rcriti ulilization b),
l\licro, Small and I\ledium Entcrprises. with access to the new tcchnol<lgit s dcvelopeil
b1.KIRDI, NISNIEs l'erc able to manufacrure high raluc, high qualitl ancl cornperiii\.e
products for both domestic and foreign markets.

Kenya Industrial Research and Development lnstirute (KIRDI)
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
Ior the year endecl 3O'" June 2O23

'rhe impact of technologl' de'elopment and transfer is increase in lncome for thc
l\lsl\lEs as well as producers of raw mtrtcrials. During the Financial ) ear, l.,lRDI playecl
a key-role in job creation through lransfer of industrial technologit,s to rupport ihe
nlanufacturing sector. The Institute supportcd 633 industrial clicni.s through itusiness
incubation and comnron manufacturing facilities; the institute trainerl 119.]i industrial
clients and upgrarled thcir skills in production of various proclucts. A total of 2g2
industrial clients rvere supported Io ascerlain products ancl processcs quality through
l)r()\ isions of laboratorl scrvices.

onc of the key projects that the board continued to implement during rhe financial
)ear 2022/2023 is construction of KIRDI Techno centre in Nairobi ('ount).. This project
ho*'cver experienced a challenge with financing during the year thus hampciing
Ilrogress with implementation. The completion level remained at go%. \.!e look forward
to venture into the cmerging Iechnological fields such as Nano- t ochnologies, 3l)
printing, Internet of Things (loT), bioengineering among othcrs.

lJaring achieved the enactment of the Ken)'a Industrial Research and l)cvelopmenr
fnstitute Acr, 2o22 in the financial year ?o?l/2022; rhe Insltulc ernbarkecl on thc
process of operationalizing the Act. The Director Gencral is norv supportecl b1. five
directorates ke1'. This has continued to strengthen capacit), of the Institutc in
oxecuting its mandatc. The Institute is committed to constitutionalism, governance
and integrity. To this end the Institute continued to re\.iew and align its policies and
programmcs with kIRDI Act 2022. During the financial ).ear lho Instilute initiated
review and remodcling ol the strategic plan 202 l -2026 to aligned it w.ith rho Bottom-
[ ]p Economic Transfornration Agenda (BETA) and l\ledium Term plan I\' (IITp) The')O23-20?7 Strategic Plan that will guide the operations Ior the ntxr fivt, 1,ears.

\\'l
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The Institute hosted the Prime lrlinister of Spain rvhile on his tour to Kenya during rhe
) ear in recognition of successful implementation of BIAWE project. The Institute also
hosted the Council of Governors in preparation for the launch of the Count),
Aggregation and Industrial Parks (CAIPS).

A major challenge that the Institute faced was financial constraints to fund
implementation of planned activities. The allocated recurrent budget was only able to
Iake care of staff salaries and therefore the Instrtute had challenges in funding the
research and development activities as well operations and maintenance. The lnstitute
also faced challenges of lack of adequate technical staff occasioned by staff departure
through retirement, resignation and natural attrition.

Despite the financial challenges, I am happy to report that the future of the lnstftute is
very bright. The quality and quantit), of research outputs as well as number of
enlerprises being created or expanded by the Institute will go up significantly ancl
contribute to national social economic development.

o^.",ffiT.rJ++1Signature
DR. DINAH MWINZI, PHD, CBS
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6. REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR GENERAL

I am delighted to presenl the XlltDl Financial Report for thc 2022/202..t Financial ) ear.
During the ),ear, thc Institutc' continued to implclnent prograDrnres aligned to tht
Bottonl-Llp F-conomic Transformation Agencla (BETA) in pall lcular supporting \aluc
addition ancl promotion of NTSNIE gro\lth and developnrcnl. 'l-he follorving programmes
n'erc irrplenrentcd cluring the financial year.

(a) Value Addition Technology Development and Transfer

The lnstitutc developed and transferred.l(; nerv technokrgies I'or value a(ldition in agro
and nalural lrroducts, textile, lcather and blue econom) prioril) sectors. 'lhc Institutc
also rleveloped ancl transferred technologies for pr(xluction ol' rcncnable cnergl',
industrial \\,aste water treatment and solid rvaste ntilnag(,trr enl, mushrooms and
nrushroonr based products ancl building materials.

(b) Upgrade of Locally Produced lndustrial Products

During the frnancial )ear the Institutc upgradecl 66 industrial produ< ts that are lncalll,
manufactured to attain global competitiveness through proclucl clevelopment and
improvement.

(c) Industrial Technology Start Up Enlerprise Support

The Institute supported 1,308 industrial technologl start'up enterprises through
incubation, provision of common manufacturing facililies, pro(lucl developnrent,
t raining and consultanc) scn'ic(,s.

(d) Infrastructure Developmenl

l-he institute achieved construction completion levcl of It0% for KIRI)I Tcchno-Ccnlre.

(e) Externally funded projects

The Inslitute implemented the follorving extcrnally/donor Iundt'cl proiects: '

a) Developing the microbial biotechnology industrl' Irom Krnl a's soda lakes in line
rvith The Nagoya Protocol

b) Development of milkfish (Chanos chanos) arnd kimararrali (Stolcphorus
delecatulus) solar drylng-cool rcchnotogy, value addition ancl qualitl' as.surance
(Solcooldry Project).

c) Banana Paper: Commercializing eco-Friendly packaging and sanitary To$'tls.

d) Establishmenl and operation ali zation of the Infonnation and Best Practice
Platform (lBl'P) on rvast e-t o-encrg), technologies in Ken) a.

\\'lu
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e) Surveillancr- of the ()ualitl'of improved biomass cookstoves (ICS) in the Kenyan
market (GIZ.(i( F [nl)ev Ploject).

f; Aquacultule of scarveeds and lish: Opportunities for
eulpowermcnt ancl CO\/ID- l 9 resillence of fisher women
Empowel'meut Pro.i ect).

blue economic
in Kenya (Blue

g) Fortified Flour-Based Searveeds and Orphan Crops for Improved Health and
r ivelihoods in Ken),a (SEA-FORT).

h) Scaling-up solar drying to reduce post-harvesl losses in Kenya- Opportunities
ror inclusive climate-action enterprises.

i) Establishing real-rvorld values of thermal efficiency for traditional and charcoal
Stoves in Africa.

j) production of polyphenol and ganra-amino butyric acid enhanced tea from
Kenvan tea, varielies for mitigation against cancer, diabetes and high blood
Sressure.

k) Innovative approaches to value-addition and commercialization of climate-smart
:,:o;s fcr enhanced food security and nutrilion in Africa and beyond).

Going forward the Institute will put more effort in supporting upgrade of locally
produced goods so as to expand the local manufacturing sector and ultimately create
jobs anrt spuf indu strializ ation and economic development.

Signatul' Date: .>?:.9? .n.?P
DR. -ING. ONY,ANGO
DIRECTOR.GENERAL
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7. STA.TEMENT OF PERTORMANCE AGAINST PRE-DETERMINED OBJECTTVES
F{r'lt FY 2022/2023

I1-l:.il l--:.j il:,i':c (3) strategic pillars and supported
','/ithi': the .r'rr.ent Strategic Plan for the Fy 2O2l/22 -
.-r. .. f, .'-,^,.

five (5) strategic objectives
2 5/26. These strategic pillars

by
20

NIlll)l ,':r':lr,:,s.tr annual v.,o:k plans based on the above three pillars. Assessment of
il-- i' : l'. ^:.r-rformance against its annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. The
lxr. i(r . :it ?,rco,ecl i:s perfonrrancL. targets set for the Fy 2022 /23 period for its three
sii r'..11 - , ; .li 'i, ; . iirdicate d in tht, table below:

Straicgic liillarl: Nlarket driven industrial research, development and technology
' .' lrsl c:
:i rlt(:r,i': Pillar 2: Orgatizational capacity development
' . "rtci;ic l)illar 3: Strategic partnerships and knowledge management

j;; lctivc Key Performance
Ir,dicators

AchievementsategicStr
Pillar

Strategic
Pillar I :

Market I)r-.':,i
Industlral
Research,
Dcvelolrrne'tt
and
Technoli: ,r'
Transfer

I o undertake
markel driven
industrial
res0arch and
oerrelopment

No. of
technologies/prototypes
developed

No. of intellectual
propertl/ r'ights granted

No. of MSME's products
upgraded

No. of+ubli{ations
done

46 new technologies
developed to address
priority areas against a
targeted 2 5 technologit
during the period

Registration on one IP
initiated during the
period.

66 MSME's products
upgraded against a
target of 60 in priority
sectors as follows; Agrr
processing (38),
Chemical and Allied
products (16), Textile (2
Leather (4), Engineering
(6) during the financial

ar
Eighteen ( l8) scientific
papers published in
various research ouma
46 new technologies
developed & transferred
tO MSME'S

To transfer
techrrok;gies
ihat support

No. of tcchnologies
'transferred

Activities

Develop
technologies
to address
identified
technoiogy
gaps
Apply for
registration of
lntellectual
properties
from
developed
technologies
tJpgrade of
MSME,S
products
through
product
improvement

Publications
in scientific
ioumals
Transfer
industrial
technologies
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T

Amount receir,ed from
development partners
(KES. in Ntillion)

Percentage (%)

Completion on
Construction of
lndustrial Ilcsearch
Laboratories al Nairobi,
South Il

Achievements

1,308 industrial
cnterprises supported
against a targcted 940
during the period.

Slrtecn (1 6) additional
leather enterprises
supported through
capacity building and
provision of common
user facilities

Held engagement forum
with threc County
Governments: Laikipia,
Uasin-Gishu and Embu
counties on the
establishment of CAIPS
and developed a
programme support
framework.
Generated A'in-A of KES
2 I.07 million against a
tar et of KIS 26 million
Generated KES 66.6
million for
implcmentation of dono

ed-prolects

The project completion
level for industrial
research laboratories at
NErrobi, South B

remained at 80% as it
was at the beginning of

Strategic
Pillar

Objective Key Performance
Indicators

Activities

tO NISI\IES

Provide
lncubation,
Common
Irlanufacturing
Facilitics,
Capacit)'
Building and
Laborat ory
Sen ices to
N{SIUES

No. of l\ISNIE's
supporled

No. of additional
N{SN{E's accessing
Kisumu and Nairobi
leather facilities

Optimizc
operational
capacit),for
the KIRI)l
Kisumu and
Nairobi
leather
research
laboratories
and CMF

growlh of the
manufacturing
and MSN{Es
sector

Support the
establshment
of County
Aggregation
and Industrial
Parks

Programme framework
on CAIP'S supporl done

Increase in amount of
A-l-A generated (KES

Ntillion)

A-in-A
gencration

Mobilize
resources
from
development -_
partners

Strategic
PiIIar 2:
Organizational
Capacity
Development

To strengthen
organizational
capacity

Complete
construction
of lndustrial
fesearch
laboratories at
Nairobi, South
B

L-
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No. of CSR activities
undertaken

Undertake
Corporate
Social
Responsibility

Customer Satisfaction
Level (%)

Number of infomercials
and press briefs
developed and
Published,/aired

Undertaking
Branding &
Promotion,
Marketing
outreach

Number of marketing
outreach activities
undertaken

No-efl4anagement
Systems Reviewed and
Implemented

S stems

ew and
Implement
Management

target of increasing it to
8 5% due to inadequat
fundin
Participated in tree
planning exercise in
collaboration lvith
Olekesasio Vocational
Centre at Rongai, Kaji lo
County. The Institute ls
collaborated with the
TVET to take care of tr ,

1 ,000 lrees planted.

Attained 80
total
satisfaclion
improvement

per c-n!
custol:l
rate nr
from 74.8

er cent in 202I.
Twelve (12) news
fealures done with
various TV stations,
featured in one (1 ) loc
radio stalion, slx (6)
interviews/talk shows l
TV, prepared and
disseminated two (2)
newsletters and
mentions in four (4) dr 1
news a ers
Exhibited at Pre
Madaraka Expo (26'h -
30'h I\lay 2023), Turbo
Farmers Erpo and Tra ,-
Fair, Kibuye Market Lo rl

Leather Traders Value
Addition Program,
Changamka festival (I -

5'h November 2022),
BLAWE beneficiaries
programm e launch (br
Spain Ambassador ano
Prime Minister
Government of S aln
Re-engineered busin-;s
incubation, laboratory

xxll
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Key Performance
Indicators

Training Report

No. of st aff traincd

No. of stakeholdcr's
forums helcl

Achievements

service delivery process
and reduced service
delivery timelines by 20

er cent;
Training
Assessment
approved

Needs
done and

for

To forge and
strengthen
strategic
partnerships
with industry
and other
stakcholders

tm lementation
Trainings affected by
budgetary constraints;,1
staff underwent senior
management training
and fifty (50) staff
sensitized on knowledge
management by the
National Quality
Institute.
Organised three (3)
stakeholder workshops
and four (4) research
seminars during the
period:-
. Linking Research to

Industries
supporting the
milling sector to
enhance food quality
and security in
Kenya;

. workshop on Waste
to Energy Biogas
Technology, Biogas -
IBPP workshop aI
KIRDI South B (29'h -
30'h November 202 2;

o Launch of the Solar
Cooling and Drying
Technology

-. 
(SolCoolDry) in
Mwazaro, Kwale
County on 8rr

February 2023 in
partnership with
KNlFRl, Innotech, TUM
and FraunhoferlSl

. ATDC - jlCA funded

Strategic
Pillar

objective Activities

Undertake
Training
Needs
Assessment
Undertake
staff training
as per training
programme
report

Strategic
Pillar 3:
Strategic
Partnerships
and
Knowledge
Management

Organize and
participate in
research
seminars and
workshops for
dissemination
of research
outputs

\\llr
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To facilitate
knowledge
management
within the
Institute

Operational Knowledge
Management System

Develop and
implement a
Knowledge
Management
System

2 3'olr{arcl

Undertook

KEMRI on KM and
prepared a draft
knowledge managem lt
policy and submitted to
senlor mana ement.

(20"
2023)
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a) Role of the Board of Directors

The Board of KIRDI exercises its role ( ollcctively. Il is responsible for defining the
Institute's mission, vision, purpose anrl core values. Additionally, the Board setJ and
oversees the overall strategy, approves ltolicies ensures alignment between strategy is
Institutional purpose, and safeguards and the lcgitimate interests and expectations of
shareholders and other stakeholders. N4oreover, the Board ensures that the Institutc's
strategy aligns with long term su st ainabilit)., goals, preser','ing the ability of future
generations lo meet their o\,\.n necrls. Furthermore, the Board approves the
organizational structure, annual bucl.get and monilors performance to ensure
sustainability. It also enhances the corporate image, secures adequate resources,
appoints the Director-General and scnior management, and facilitates effective
communication with stakeholders.

b) Composition of the BOD

The Board consisted of one (1) executivo and eleven (10) non-executive Directors. The
composition and the diverse expericncc and expertise of the Directors are detailed on
pages Vii to xi.

c) Board Meetings

A schedule of Board and commi(ce moetings rvas provided lo the Board in advance
during the financial year.

The Board and Management of KIRI)I arc dedicated to upholtling the highest
standards of corporate governance. -l'his statement outlines KIRDI,s govcrnance
principles and practices which are rooterl in the Institute's corporate values and ethics
aimed at foslering growth and valuc for all lstakeholders.

in the year ending 30'h June 2023, the ltoard convened as follows: six (6) Full Board
meetings, three (3) Special Full Boar(l mer'tings related to senior staff recruitment, four
(4) RTI committee meetings, four (-l) Frnance, strategy and Special projects committee
meetings, four (4) Risk and Audit cornmittee meetings, four (4) HRA committee
meetings, and four (4) Ad Hoc Commirroe meetings. Additionaly, the Board held tr,r,o
special finance, strategy and spccial pro,iects committee meetings, one special risk and
audit ccommittee meeting, and receive<l \isits from the Spanish presidint, Governors
and Principal Secretary. lndividual a t,ndance at these meetings is outlined in the
table below.

8. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
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d) 2022/2023 BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES MEMBERSHIP AND
ATTENDANCE

Board Member Full
Board

Speci
al Full
Board

Spain
Presid

ent
visit

PS

Tou
I

Visit
by

Gove
mors

RTI spe
cial
RTI

HRE
A

Speci
al

HR&
A

RA
c

Speci
al

RAC

Financ
e&

Special
Project

s

spe
cial
F&
SP

Dr.oinah
Mwinzi, CBS 6 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

A0.
HO(

Sout
B

Mrs. Omari Jane
Bisieri 5 2 1 3 0 4 2 2 0 0 0

Prof. George
Thionq'o 6 3 0 4 0 0 3 3 1 0

0 0 4 2

0r. Eng. David
Nduhiu 4 3 '1 0 0 4 3

1 4 0 0 0 0 0 4 2
Mr. Roy Getusi
Nyanqena 6 3

Mr. Stanley
Maina Kaqera 5 2 0 1 0 0 0 0 4 3 2

I 0 0 3 5 0 0 4 2

Ms. Catherine
Bunyasi 6 3 1

0 0

Mr. John Henry

Onyanoo 6 3 0 0 2 0 0 0 4

1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Mr.JK
Wanq'ombe 3

0 3 5 0 0
Eng. Lucy
Mutinda 2 1 1 1 0

3 5 0 0 0 0
Ms. Joyce M

Nioou 2 1 0 1 4 0

Prof. Walter
Oyawa 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 01

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Mr. Stephen
Situma 0

4

0

3

0

3

4

0

0

4

0

0

0

2

3

4

6

7

8

9

0

10

tt

13
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BOARD COMMITTEES AND THEIR COMPOSITION
The Board cornmittees, comllosition anrl rrunrlate is trs belo\\-:-

Research Technology and Innovation Conrmitlee
As the core manrlate ol the Institule, lhis conlrnittet, acltlresses all rratters pertaining
to research,technologl, and innovation pt>licits, gniclt'lines and management.

'fhe members of the committee welo

I. Prof. George Thiongo'
2. Nlr. Stephcn Situma
3. Ntr. John H. O. Ogrvang'
.1. N'lr. Roy Getusi Nyangcna
5. NIs. .lo) ce Nl. Niogu
6. Dr.-lng. Calvin Onyango

(Chairperson)

The committee had the responsibilitl 1o nronilor and evalualc rescarch, technologl,,
iand nnovation projects wlthin the lnstitulr.. it defincd and recommended to the Board
the scope of research, technologl antl innoralion are.rs relcvant to the Institute,
additionally it developed policl, guidelincs for managing the Institute's research,
technologl,, innovation portfolio ancl orcrsarl Ihc e\tent of research, technologl,,
innovation and dcvelopment, comparing it u,il h Ihe rvorld besl practices.

Finance and Special Proiects Committee

This Commiltee served as the primarl mechanism through rvhich the Board ensured
that the Institute's decisions, policies ar1(l practices conccrning finance, procurement,
infrastructural development and all spccial proiects complied with relevant policies
and slatutory requirements.

The members of the committce rverc

l. Dr. Eng. Dav'icl Nduhiu (Chairperson)
2. Nlr. Stanley NIaina Kagera
3. Mr. Roy Nyangena
.1. Irls. Catherinc Bunl'assi-K ahuria
5. Dr.-lng. Calvin Onyango

l'he Committee rvas tasked with a(l\ ising ancl nraking recommendations to thc Board
ol Directors on all aspects of financial slrateg),, including fundraising initiatives. lt
revierved financial performance agarnst lrudget and plans, considered proposals for
mafor tapltal expendrt'ure projects ancl monitored progress dunng rmp emenl ation
Furthcrmore, the Committee requcstecl and received reports from other committees
on any matter having a financial implica(ion, ensuring that adequate A-in-A was raised,
providing oversight of the arrangcrrents for safegr"rarding institutional assets and

' 'makingrecommenkions to the Board as appropriate.

\\\tl
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Risk and Audit Commitree

'rhe Risk &..\udil commillee ovcrs.t\\'risk manager]]t'nt ancl audit matters.
audil Llnit \\'ithin the institute \\ as responsible fbr conducting intcrnal
proviclcd sccrelariat t0 the Risk & ..\udit Comnlittee of the Board.

l-he intcrnal
auclit s ancl

The membcrs of the Commill('e \l,ero

l. I\lr. John H. O. Ogrvang'
2. Eng. Lucl Nlul inda
3. Prof. George 'fhiongo
{. I\lr. Stanlt,1, I\laina Kagera

(Chairperson)

'fhe Comnrittee's responsiltilitl t'ncompassed reviewing the activities, rcsourccs ancl
the operalional clfet'tireness of internal audit office; this included appointmenl,
replacemcnt, and clisnrissal r>l'the Internal Auditor, and made recommendations to the
Boarcl as necessar). .Addilionall) lhc Commitlee, reviervecl the scope of rvork and audit
plans of the internal audil officr, major findings ancl investigations reports; an(l
ensurcd appropriate action [,ils taken. It monitored management's responsiveness Io
internal audit findings, revirred c\Iernal auditors Nlanagcment lettcrs and responses
and addressedan), resevations lhal arose during the audits. The Committeee reported
its actions and rcconrnrend at ion s to the Board and perfomed other relevant duties
assigned bl the Board relalecl to audtt and invcstigation.

Human Resources and Administration Committee

This Committec t,nsured the adequac), and effectiveness of lhe Institut's Human
Resource lUanagement and Adminislrationactivities.

The I\lcmbers of the Commitle('\\'ere:-

l. Irts. Jo1'ce N.i6gu
2. I)r. Eng. David Nduhiu
3. Iing. l-uc) l\lulinda
-1. I\ls. Calherine Bunl assi-Kahuria
5. I\lr. St cphen SiIuma.
6. l)r.-lng. Calr in Onl ango

(Chairperson)

The Commillee's role involved rc\,ierving, monitoring and making recommendations to
the Board on hum.ln resour(cs strategy and policies pertaining to staffing,
compensation, benefits, and 0ther strategic issues impacting the institutr,'s ability to
reerr.tit, develop and rt'tain hrghll -,qualjfied staff. lt dgliberated orr platr.lotians. _
terminatlons, dismissals, and stafl development requests and it also received reports
from other commitlees on matters with human resourcc implications and performed
other duties assigned bl the Board relatcd to Human Resource and Administration.

- 
Directors' Remunerations

Details of remunoration paid to thc t)irectors are provided in the Remuneration Report
on Page 15.

L\\'lll
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Risk Management and Internal Control

TheBoardisresponsibleforthelnstirule,s.s)'stemofliskmanag't,nenlanclinternirl
control, rvhich is ,r"''gntti"to"i''u''ui" totf-,"i rhan eliminatc the risk of failure to

achieve Insrirute,s ottjectwes- ;;;--u" pror,icle o.nlv reasonable ancl not absolttte

assurance againsl -u'"i'u'i -i"toitnl"ni^ t" toJs' iit" tsoarcl has clelegated

responsibilitv f,,, rt't ong'Jilg;;;i;;;; i'f r'he 
"ifectlueness 

of this s)stcrn to the

Risk and Audir (.omnilr,"i.'i"n.'b"ii.r-i",i'ir",t ,.gui^i t.pnr,s frotrt lhe. chairman of

the Risk ancl Audit c";;ii;;" ;; its activities 'Juring 
thc lear and in'addition

consrctered a report r.on-, iiil'e'riii'.;;,riiii;.' ;n trt. .on'Autt .f arrd the tindings and

agreed actions from the J;;;i t;;;;t;"tti "r 
risk min-agement and internal control'

Board Performance Evaluation

t,nderlheguiclclineslssueclbl.staltCorl)()ralttlns,\dr.istlrl(.()tllmille(S(.\C),anclthe
Performance ltanage'nent' oifit t' tr't Btriltl is responsiblo for t'nstlring lhat rigorous

evaluation is car.ed ,", ;i,l'J;;rf*-.",., ,irA ,t,ii oi,,t co'lmittees and individ,al

clirecrors. The er.aluation'i;':,I*i";i;; ,;,;,;ilt anrl the restrlts ol lhc evalualion are

provided ro rhe luinlsrr) 
'# rrr:..inl.rrs. Tra(le .na'tnautttl , sc.A( and office ol thc

presiclent on performanc""l#i;ii;;'iht suo.a otiuin"o it a"orage score of 90 2%

rated as verY good Perfomance'

lnstitute's Conduct Guidelines

TheGuidelinessetoutKlRDl,scommitmcnttothehisheststandardsofintegrity.They
have been circutared,".;;il;;;;';.iii.-'r,. rnrtrtiie ana are also available on the

lnstitute's website *** r<irai'et; te' A range or ttutui"i werc developed to ensure that

cmployees in the lnstitute##^i*a tttti? "i 
tr't g'ia"iintt and of the general nccd lo

onsure thal all institute s ":;itjii;;;;;;:' 
onttutttj in a compliant and ethical manner'

Ethical Policies

Thevaluesoflhelnstitutearecustomerfoctls'innovalivenessandcreativity'integrity
and proressionalism, o'iii,:";;;;;;';it;;; una 

' 
i"t**ott ancl enviro'nmenral

nrotccrion. The Board .u.ii.i b,,, lls k,gal tlirties ln.aicordance $ith thest' r'alues and

iraving approprirt" .egurd'tT th;;;t"':;; i'i ilxor't iiuxeholders Policies and codes

of conduct have been "r,'"iiot 
.,i'ilr: 

"itre 
uoard in,l n]unog"n]ent t o support thc

intttirt.'t objcctives, usion and values'

Statement of Professional Practice

The Institute's cocle of ethics' kno\n/n l:-lltt i]}P,I-:ode 
of Conduct' scts standards of

Fellavioriequired oi hll "*;i;)=;; 
ancl Diicctors incl-udfne': -

o To acl properly and efficientlf in pursuing the objectives of the Institute;

. To avoid situations which may giie rise to a conflict of interest;

. To knorv una "an"t".ioit't'ill"'ii"i";t 
Equal Employment opporturlity-policy

. iltJi,onfllfllnfiaenttatitl, in rhc affairs of the tnstirLrte and irs stakeholders;

and

l\l\
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To be absolutel
Thesc standard

y honest in all prolcssional actiYitics.
s arc regularll comntunjcate(l lo the Instituto,s sta ff

Going Concern

The Institute's acti'iries, together *ith the factors likeil. t, afftct lts 
'uture

cle'elopmcnt, rrerformancc an"d p.siri.n ,r,i'r"i'',ur, In rhe R(,port of the (.hicr.

[Tr[f f f;ii;T,ll#"ff i;*J];Tl;,il.f illr.::j j;lrltir*f;::r,1,;*:l

Having assessed the rerevant operational risks, the I)irectors believt, that the Institutels rvell placed lo manap(, irs 
'opcrirti,nrif' 

.iri. 'rr.."rsfull1,. 
Tht, I)ircctors ha\ c areasonabre e\p('ctatron ihat 

^rhti lnsrituie'i,,,r"ualq.ru," resour(.(,s lo conrinue rn:;i'l:ff;jt:',1';i[:i:;;x'J;luri:i:ll*"*t,ii,,i.;,";i;ffi;;,i"irirl. *",,,
Workplace Responsibilities, Behaviors and Compliance
The lnstitute is strongr) c,mmitted to maintaining an erhicar workprace and tocomplving with its lesal axd erhicat rtispJn.irrliiii"-t ]in" Insrirure has a number ol.poricies rerating ro r'ork nrace 

^res 
ponsibirit ies, bchiviors and compriance rhat appr) toand musr be obscrved bv sraff. ri. i"r"ii, 

",'r,ir'0"1v.,.n, 
i, prace which arows stafffl;:ffi:i':J,ilTui'' u',on1mo,.s;i ffi;;;;:".,1o?,", rraud or corrupt, unrawrur or

sa\
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9. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SECTION A: Operational and Financial Performance

KIRDI's budget is funded by the National Government for operations channelled
through the State Department of Industry. The annual buclget is approved by the Board
of Directors. During the financial year 2O?2/2O2.i, approved budget for KIRDI was KES
I,l{3,{30,00. The budget breakdown consrsts of recurrent budget KES 6{3,-130,000
and development budget KES 500,000,000. How,ever, during sr"rpplementary the
lnstitute budget u,as rationalised reducing the development budget to KES 125,000,000
and increased recurrent budget to KES 621,720,000. Horvever only KES 580,730,000
was disbursed to the Institute. This negatively,alfected the lnstitute cash flow status
ancl project completion timelines for KIRDI Techno Cenl re. The tablc shorvs analysis
of actual recurrent and developmt'nt expenditure trends lirr the last Ihree 1,s31s

GoK Recurrent

A-iA
Development

Total

617,290,693

23,O71,229

360,469,000

r,000,833,922

617,.130,000

21,312,S16

448,000,000

I,O86,742,546

s80,730,000

2l ,066,056

r 2 s,000,000

726,796,056

Analysis of financial performance
During the Fa 2022/23, KIRDI received KES 580,730,000 from the exchequer as
recurrent disbursements. Development funds rect,ived during the year totalled to KES
125,000,000. The Institute further targeted to raise KES 26 million as A.l.A and KES 50
million for implementation of donor fundecl research projects. The figure below shows
a summary of receipts during the financial year.

FY 2022123: RECEIPTS
Ocnor Fund!

69.,

Re(urrenl Grants
76%

. Recurrent Grants r oevelolryrelri Grants t A.lA Donor Iund5

\\\t
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Lrtilisalion of GoK rt'current funcls r\as.it lO0 % during the )car and uas expcncled on
personnel emoluments, rt'scarch costs, specialized materials and supplies, board
expenses antl general exponscs. l'he Institule also implt,nrentecl clonor funded rtsearch
pro.iects anrl consultancies attaining 100% utilisation.

SECTION B: Compliance

Entity's compliance with statutory requirements

The lnslitute has compliccl \\'ilh I hc PI]NI Act 201 2, Public I)ro( urentcnt and Assel
Disposal Act,2015 and otht,r legal rccluirements such as subntission of statutorl.
deductions (i.e. timcl) remillanco ol NHIF, NSSF, PAYE, NITA, HEI-B, \'AT ancl lnconrt
ra\ wirhholding).

Access to Government Procurenrent Opportunities (AGPO)
Thc Instilutc awardecl a tolal of NF.S 20,[t52,-+{-l to AGPO rn line \.vith thc .10% allocation
requirement. The annual targct oI KES 1;,336,00O rvas surpasserl.

Promotion of Local Conlenl in Procurement
The Institute complied to thc reser\ation of a minimum of 1O% of the procurement
budget towards locally produced goods ancl senjccs and awarded KES 77,113,365.

SECTION C: Projects and lnveslments

Key projects and investmenl decisions the entity is planning/implementing.

Thc lnstitute's key capital project is the construction of KIRDI Techno centre lvhich is
fully funded by governmt'nt and Iacilitatt's the upgrade and modernization of thc
institution's industrial rescarth laboratories.

Other donor research projrcts under implcmenlation include: -

l. I)evelopment of ntilkfish (Chonos chanos) and kimararvali (Stolephorus
delecatulus) s<llar drl ing- cool technolog;,, value addition and quality assuranco
project (SOLCOOLDR\').

2. Banana paper project: (commercializing t'co-friendly packaging and sanitar),
towels).

3. Seah'eeds, amaranth and Iingcr millct nutrients fortification of bakery products
for improved health and lir clihoods in Ken),a (SEA-FORT).

4. Establishment of r,r'astc -to-L'nc'rg), (WTE) Inter11atio44l B_est Practice Platform
(IBPP) for biogas in Kcn1a.

5. Aquaculture of searveeds and f ish: Opportunities for blue economic
empowerment and COVID-I9 resilience of fisher women in Kenya (A Blue-
Empolverment Pro ject ).

6. Na+ional Biomass Stovcs Survcillance GIZ-GCF Proicct.
7. Scaling-up solar drying to rcduce post-han/est Iosses in Kenya- Opportunities

for inclusive climatt -action enlerpriscs.

a
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8. Establishing real,\\:orld values of thtrmal cfficicncl' for traclilional and charcoal

stoves in Afl'ica.

SECTION D: tusks

Major risks facing the entitY.

1-he major risk facing the lnstitutc is legal action- (ltte to breach of contracl for the

KIRDI Techno centre Project. The proieci has run behincl completion schctlule due to

io* funding and the project has starretl incurring cost o'erruns. Currentll the project

hu, ^...,-ilrteA 
penAing bills amounting to KES I.02 billion arising from the marn

l""riiii".. pending certiiicates of KES 6-1,-.31 million ancl final accounts of KES 370 9

;;,ili; rrrunug"*.nt will take necessa4 measures with the parenr ministry and

National Treasury to mitigate this risk in the ntedium term'

IO. ENVIRONMENTALAND SUSTAINABILIryREPORTING

Our mission is to undertake industrial Icsearch and tlansfer innovative technologies

ini toiio 
".nnomic 

development. To have an impact on national de'elopment it is

important for KIRDI to undertake rele\,ant and quality industrial research,

Sustainability strategy and profile
ilnot', role in thJ- manuiacturing sector is not limited to spurring industrial

.u-pui,riu"n.rs but atso enhancing iustainability. Our sustainability guiding agenda is

t,choecl in the strategic plan which has first and fort'most ensured thal activities are

"ii;;;;i 
-onci 

cont.ibite to the realisation of the national developmcnt agenda and

iniernational obligations. The institule's sustainability agenda for the plan period is
based on three pil-lars: market driven inclustrial research, developmcnt ancl technology

I;";;i% organizational capacity clevelopment and; strategic partnerships and

knowledge management.

During rhe plan pcriod the KIRDI Bill was enacted and then cstablished KIRDI as a

.n.pniut" Uoal' ,ilttr perpetual succession. The Act has taken into account emerging

iechnologies, promotion'of inventions ancl innovations through compensation and

.riiUlrt,*ant' of industrial research infrastruclure. In adclition, the management

undertook continuous improvemenl of business operations tlnd. atlained re-

cerlification under ISO soot:zots melnagement syslems and also faciutated

accreditation of laboralories in ISO,/IEC I7025:2017' This is expected to increase

credibilitl'of laboratory tests as well as efficiency and effectiveness in st'n'ice delivery'

Notable challenge in implementatien of sustainability $rategies rtas +eduetierr in-
atloiated ,.ror.i.. which affected implementation of planned activities. As a solution,

-"nug"-".,t enhanced collaborations tvilh the private seclor, development partners

and g"overnment agencies to ensure sen,icc deliver)' continued unaffectecl.

il Environmental Performance
l)uring the plan period, the lnstitute spearheaded measures

.n-r,i.r-.nt, mitigite climate change and improve the national
undcrtaking sensiiization rvorshop on environment protection and

to protect the
forest cover by
climate change

\\\lll
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a

mitigalion for staff and NSI\rE's participating in Ihe inslitute,s incubation and commonI\lanuIact uring Facilit ies.

Further IIRDI parlnerecl rvith Technical tJnir.ersily ol Denmark (DTtr) in a prlot projectthar sought to demonsrrate thc economic and 
' en'ironmentar benefits of enabringIluaraka-based companies to exchange rvastes ancr rry-pi"ai .tr 

-itiu,.,-gt " 
rnarr,.iorSymbiosis (i.e. companies com.e-togeth;r and exchange resources - wastc procruct fromone industry,is a rarv material for another indust 11. (instead of clisposal)_ Through thcproiect, (Green and Circular Innovatton for heny,an Companies fCiC:fOj, rlnorde'eloped a screening toor .to quantify input, nriput, ruurt. and b1 -procruct for thecompanies in Ruaraka industrial cluster; usid thc sireening tool to unciertake material,water, and energy flow assessments; determined porential of .".f, .onrlru.1: ,u 

"ngrg"in circular econom).; and de'eloped a database, basis for negoiiat"a 'iili.{t. 
"ura 

nyproduct exchange.

ii) Employee welfare
Thc lnstitute has an appr.vecr Human Resource policies and procedures manuar (2022)that guides the recruitment proccss. The regulatro.,, tut.- ,ntir-'.onJ,a.rutionrecruitment, selection, appointmenr, promotion and transfer mattcrs in KIRDL Thisuli-9 t'k" into account rhe gender rule and pwD's. During the pran periocl, managemenrinitiated revrew of the HR instruments to rake into consideration th" n"* iinol n.t. l,addition, the human resource departmenr rp.ort*od.d the foxowini i.iiiiii.. ro.employees;

a) Carried out a staff training needs assessment, and implemented itsthrough training of staff. In addition, performance appraisar for aI staffdone and recommendations forwirclcd to senior _onuga_aniimplementation.

gaps
was
for

b) sensitizing staff on disability and gencrer mainstreaming. Dc,velopment of thegender based violence policy was initiared ancl a drafi submitiecl to ieniormanagement for approval.

c) sensitized all staff, interns and attachees on roacr safety.and facilitated trainingof two drivers on defensive driving at Kenya Insrjture oi utgi,*o};, inJ rirliiirgTechnology (KIHBT).

d) Prorrded support to employees at risk and to those with substance usedisorders by facilitating one staff member affccted by drug ura-rrt.iun..through the EAp programme and is currenrrl unaergoing pi.,i.rrutiritition
support programme.

The management hai in prac.' Safety, ltealih and Environment policy in compriancewith Occupational Safcty and t-lealth n.t of ZrrO;. 
- -

iii) Market place practices
a) Repponsible supply chain and supplier relations
The Institute commits ro ensure timery paymenti of suppliers rvirhin 30 days ofsubmission of claim documents as indicated'in the service derivery charter. Through

).\.YIV
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the suppll. chain clcpartment, thc organisation ttntlerlakes a(l\ erliscmenl of lt'ntlers

,rr.,d a,rl,rrds ancl accoicls ol)portunltiei to r'(,sl)r'ctite categorios \\'ithotll (lis( rilllillation'

b) Producr stewardshiP
iinfjl Ir inslrur.nental in strpporting clients to ttpgracle Iheir llrotlttcls to illlpro\e lheir

..*p"ii, ii:.r"is through research itnd qtralitl control. I)trring the Iinancial )L'ar a lolal

of 6(i proclucts h'ere upgracled to attilill certification'

iv) CorporateSocialResponsibility
.'i, puii 6ft ,,-,arking Worlil En\ironmental I)a1 on 6"' .lunc, 202 1. KlRl)l Stafl ancl

fiunig.-.nt planrtt 1,000 trees at Olekasasi \''ocittional 'fraining Ct'ntrt' in Kaiiado
('ounl1,.

Figurcl.KlRl)l Managcmcnl and sliltl irt olckirsilsi vT('(luring plilnlinS iln(l irlicr lhc lrcc Plxrllrn{ :cssl{)rr

\\\\,
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I I.REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors submit their 
_r_eport logether rvith the ar-rclited Iinancial statements forthe year ended June 30'h, 2023 which Jhow the state of Ihe Instirute,s urriiir. 

-

i. Principalactivities

The principal activit), of the Institute is to undcrtake research, development andinnovation in industrial and allied technologies.

ii. Results

The results of the entirv for the year endt-cr .l0,n.rune, 2023 are set out on page r to 23of this report.

iii. Directors

The members of the Board of Directors lvho served durin g the year are shown on pageon )ocxi & rrcxii of the report.

iv. Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audir of the Institute inaccordance with Article ZZ7 of lhe Constitution of Keni,a and the public Audit Act,20t 5.

By Order of the Board

t,
lr

Signarure:...... . . ..8[.':in..,.....
MS. GRACE MAURE}N CKOCO
CORPORATION SECREThRY

Date: aslq+l?.". t
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12. STATEMENTOFDIRECTORS'RESPONSIBILITIES

Section 8l ol Public Finance Managemenl Act, 2012 and Section 1,l of lhe Slate

Corporalions Acl, require the Directors to prepare financial statements in respect of

the Institute, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of lhe Institute at

the end of the financial year/period and the operating results of the lnstitute for that

year/period. The Directors are also required to ensure that the Institute keeps proper

accounting records rvhich disclose with reasonablo accuracy the financial position of

lhe lnstitute. Thc Direclors are also responsible for safeguarding lhe asscts of the

Institut('.

The Dircclors arc responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Institute's

financial stalements, which give a true and fair view of the statc of affairs of the

Institule for and as at the end of the financial year (period) ended on June 30'n, 2023.

This responsibility includes: (i) maintaining adequate financial management

arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be effective throughout the

reporling period; (ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with

reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the entity; (iii) designing,

implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair

presentalion of Ihe financial statements, and ensuring that they are free Irom material

misstatemenls, rryhether due to error or fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets of the

Institute; (v) selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and (vi) making

accounting eslimales that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Directors accepl responsibility for the Institute's financial slatements, which have

been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and

prudent judgements and estimates, in conformity with Internalional lhblic Sector

Reporling Standards (IPSAS), and in the manner required by the PFN,I Act and the State

Corporations AcI. The Directors are of the opinion that the lnstitute's financial

statements give a true and fair view of the state of lnstitute's transactions during the

financial year ended June 30'h, 2023, and of the lnstitute's financial position as at that

date. The Directors further confirm the completeness of the accounting records

maintained for th(r lnstitute, which have been relied upon in thc preparation of the

Institute's financial statements as well as the adequacy of the systems of internal

financial control.

xxxlvl l
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Nothing has come to the anention of the Directors to indicate that the Insurute will not
remain a going concem for at least the ne)d ftvelve months from the date of this
statement.

Approval of the financial statements

The Kenya Industrial Research and Development Institute's Financial Statements were

approved by the Board of Directors on 20n day of September 2023 and signed on its
behalf by:

q-c?)
Dr. Dinah Mwind, CBS Dr. -Ing. Onyango
C}IAIRPERSON OF TIIE BOARD DIRECTOR.GENERAL

)oofflll
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OFFI(E OF THE AUDFON.GE ENAL

EnhunL ing .lcttuntahil itv

A

REPORT OF THE AUD]TORGENERAL ON KENYA INDUSTRIAL RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT INSTITUTE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE,2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which
considers compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notic€s,
circulars, guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a
prudent, efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure the
Govemment achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the
intended purpose.

C. Report on the Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Govemance
which considers how lhe entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance slructure, risk
management environment and internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that the entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governane€ systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 ot the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Acl, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kenya lndustrial Research and
Development lnstitute set out on pages 1 to 26, which comprise of the statement of
financial position as at 30 June, 2023 and the stratement of financial performance,

Repor, o/the Arditor-General on Kenya ltdus,riol Research ond Do)elopment lnstitute lot the year ended 30June,2023



J
tstatement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison

of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions
of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015.
I have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of my knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, lhe financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Kenya lndustrial Research and Developmenl lnstitute
as at 30 June, 2023 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended, in accrrdance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and comply with the Public Finance Management Ad., 2012, the Science,
Technology and lnnovation Act, 2013 and the Kenya lndustrial Research and
Development lnstitute Act, 2022.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

The statement of financial performance reflects a net loss for the year of
Kshs.255,633,032 (2022: Kshs.78,374,639). Further, the statement of financial position
shows that lnstitute's cunent liabilities exceeded the current assets by Kshs.754,966,857
an indication of negative working capital for the lnstitute. However, the financial
statements have been prepared on a going ooncern assumption, the lnstitute is
technically insolvent and its ability to continue as a going concem is dependent upon
support from the National Government and its creditors. Further, Management and Board
of Directors has not disclosed in these financial statements material uncertainty related
to going concem.

ln the circumstances, the going concern of the lnstitute could not be confirmed.

2. lnaccuracies in Unused Project Funds

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note21 of thefinancial statements
reflects unused project funds balance of Kshs.27,357,793. However, the project cash
book reflects a balance of Kshs.2,843,142 resulting in an unexplained variance of
Kshs.24,514,65't .

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the unused project funds
balance of Kshs.27,357,793 could not be confirmed.

3. Lack of Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 18 to the financial statements
reflects a balance of Kshs.6,250,219,967 in respect to poperty, plant and equipment
which includes an amount of Kshs.39,625,000 in respect to original cost of motor
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vehicles as at 30 June, 2023. However, as previously reported, all motor vehicles were
fully depreciated although they were still in use by the lnstitute. Further, the other
lnstitute's assets were last valued forty{hree (43) years ago in 1980. This was contrary
to Paragraph 49 of the lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standard (IPSAS) No. 17
on property, plant and equipment which provides for revaluation of property, plant and
equipment every three to five years. ln addition, Management did not provide logbook for
one (1) vehicle for audit review.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and fair value of the property, plant and equipment
could not be confirmed.

4, Unsupported lnsurance Expenses

The statement of financial performance and as disclosed in Note 9 to the financial
statements reflects a balance of Kshs.143,490,390 in respect to use of goods and
services which includes insurance of property amount of Kshs.8,222,760 paid to
lnsurance Brokers. The amount includes Kshs.6,080,625 paid in respect to additional
scope of cover to include property under construction at KIRDI South B. However, no
supporting documents including contract and policy were provided for audit review.

ln the circumstances, the authenticity and accuracy of the premium of Kshs.6,080,625
paid could not be confirmed.

5. UnsupportedRetentions

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 23 to the financial statements
reflects a balance of Kshs.106,91 4,373 in respect to retentions . However, no evidence
of retentions bank account was provided by Management for audit review. Further, the
retentions balance has been reported as a non-current liability. This is contrary to
Paragraph 80(a) of the Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) 1, which states that
a liability shall be classified as current when it is expected to be settled in the entity's
normal operating cycle.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the retentions as at
30 June 2023 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Kenya lndustrial Research and
Development lnstitute Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on the Code of Ethics.
I have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in
accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of financial
statements in Kenya. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

Unresolved Prior Year Matters

ln the audit report of the previous year, several issues were raised under the Report on
LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources and Report on Effectiveness
of lnternal Controls Risk Management and Governance which have remained unresolved
as at 30 June, 2023.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) ot the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness and
Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing else
has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1, UnauthorizedExpenditure

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflects final expenditure
budget and actual on comparable basis of Kshs.643,430,000 and Kshs.735,495,333
respectively resulting in an over-expenditure of Kshs.92,065,333 or 14o/o of the budget.

Further, the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts: Development
reflects final expenditure budget and actual on comparable basis of Kshs.125,000,000
and Kshs.143,899,968 respectively resulting in an over-expenditure of Kshs.18,899,968
or 15% of the budget.

This was contrary to Section 12 of the State Corporations Act, Cap 446 of the Laws of
Kenya which states that "No state Corporation shall, without the prior approval in writing
of the Minister and the Treasury, incur any expenditure for which provision has not been
made in an annual estimate prepared and approved in accordance with Section 11".

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

2. Delay in Completion of Project

The lnstitute contracted a local construction company for implementation of the proposed
Techno Centre (Research, Technology and lnnovation Laboratories and related
infrastructure) in South B, that commenced on 25 February, 2013 at an estimated contract
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sum of Kshs.3,933,008,763 and was to take one hundred and fifty-six (156) weeks, with
an initial completion date of 3 March, 2016. The prc4ect period was however extended
by 82 weeks for the fourth time bringing the total cumulative project period to 507 weeks
with a new completion date of 25 November, 2022 at a revised contract sum of
Kshs.5,455,099,842. However, review of the project records at the time of audit in
January, 2024 established that the contract was terminated on 15 September,2O22wilh
the project completion rate estimated at 80% and works amounting to
Kshs.4,121 ,243,494 having beencumulatively certifiedthrough Certificate No.55 of
7 December, 2022.ln addition, an arbitration had been undertaken which was concluded
with a certified settlement dated 1 November, 2022 ol Kshs.487,700,497. The entire
cumulative amount incurred on the project was totalling Kshs.5,025,527,320 as at
30 June, 2023.

However, the project had not been completed and was not in use ten (10) years after the
commencement date of 25 February, 2013.

ln the circumstances, the value for money on this project has not been realized.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAl) 4000. The Standard requires that I comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
comply, in all material respects, with the authorities that govern them. I believe that the
audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
conclusion.

REPORT ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK
MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1Xa) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and based on the audit
procedures performed, I confirm that nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAls) 2315 and 2330. The Standards require that I plan and perform
the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective processes and systems of internal
controls, risk management and overall governanc€ were operating effectively, in all
material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
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necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
lnstitute's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management
is aware of the intention to terminate the lnstitute or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
comply with the authorities which govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the lnstitute's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always
detect a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audlt of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) ol lhe Constitution.
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Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 201 5 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) ol the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting

from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on

the ability to continue as a going concern. lf lconclude that a material uncertainty
exists, I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related

disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of my audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
lnstitute to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.



Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the lnstitute to express an opinion on the financial
statements.

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

FCP aN cy Ga BS
AUDITOR-GENERA

Nairobi

09 May,2024
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Kenya Industrial Research and Development lnstitute (KIRDI)
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended 3oo June 2023

I l.i '

t4.

NOTES

REVENIJE

Income from non-exchange transactions
Transfers from Government 4

Grants and subsidies from
Donors s

Income from exchange transactions
Rendering of services
Rental revenue
Other income

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERTOMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30" JUNE
2023

2022/?O23
KES.

2O2t/2022
KES.

580,730,000

80,302,432

777,604,547

39,169,93 5

66r,O32,432 8t6,774,482

6

7

8

18,564,639
720,472

l ,780,94 s
2 r,066,O56

I 9, r 83,028
0

2, r 29,5 18

21,312,546

Total revenue
EXPENSES

Use of goods and SeMces
Employee Costs
Board expenditure
Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation and Amortization
Grants and Subsidies

DI . {ng. Cal
9.o.... '. '
Onyango Dr. Dinah Mlrinzi, P

CHAIRPERSON OF THE

-N\tu.*, t :

oI. Josephine Akama,OGW
DIRECTOR CS,

ICPAK No.9950

e\ *\ J" i4,\.....,.\.

682,098,488 838,087,028

9

10
l1
'\2

t3
14

r 43,490,390
546,31 r,493

l3,7s1,253
31,942,197

r 49,291,548
s2,944,639

87,283,902
605.522,968

15,232,197
2 2,81 9,096

160,r7 4,547
2 s,428,958

937,73t,520 916,461,667

STJRPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR (2 s s,633,032) (78,374,639)

The Kenya Industrial Research and Development Institute's ftnancial statements set out on page I t(

28 were approved on ...20th... day of ...September .. ..2023 and signed on its behalf bv:

s^.

DIRECTOR-GENERAL
, CBS
BOARI-

.....\l.- o t.. Lrz..r:..
Date

+sjpA
Date Date
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' I(euya Industrial llesear.ch and Developmei.rt Irrstitute (KIP.DI)
Arurual Reports and Financial Staternents
For the year ended 30,h Jrme 2023

I5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2023

ASSETS NOTES 2022/2023
I(ES.

CUIIRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash
Ecluivalents
llcceivables (non,
exchange transactiolts)
Stores and inventot-y

Total 21,7 r 3,330
NON-CURRENT
ASSETS
l)t'o1:elt1,, PIaut aud
Eclr-riltrlent
ll. & D Proiecrs
Toral
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
CUITRENT LIABIUTIES
.'\ccounts pit1,151a

[-lnusecl Project Fnr-rcls

l)r'ovisions
-fotal

NON.CI.]RRENT LIABILITIES
ll ctcl'rtions
.T'OTAL 

LIBILITIES
Net Assets
C u iri tal/Develol: utet-rt
Itr ncls
.\ccumnlatecl cieficit
.TOTAL 

NET ASSETS & LIABILITIES

I

15

16

t8

l9

20
?I
22

13,39 i,3 24

7,4 ss,803

863,203

2O2r/2022
KES.

24,3 59,9s4

280,45r,647

3,635,i 73

308,446,774

6,2 50,219,967

r 60,4 24,5 04
6,41O,644,47t

s,72 i,961,694

160,4 24,5 04
s,882,386, r98

6,432,357,801 6,r90,832,972

715,264,3 94
27,357,793
4,058,000

200,172,024
73,71A,97 /

3,3 s8,000
776,680,187 277,27t,OO7

21

97,5t2,729
874,192,916

5, s s8,164,88s

6,423,53 7,990

(86 s,3 73,10s)

2 5 7,12 3,009
474,394,01o

5,7 r6,43 8,962

6,2 98,5 3 7,990

(s 8 2,099,02 8)l5
6,432,357,80r 6,190,832,972

Il'tc Ke rn'tt ltltlltt(riLtl l?esettrch anci Developntenl ltlstiLLtle's lincntcictl statcnlcnts ser oltt on pLllte I lo
JIS \^,crP Litltlt'oveLl on 2Oth t.ittlt of ge1^, s.,^11ter 2023 L-!t1Li siqned on its behalf lti.,:

Dr. -Ing. Calvin Onyan
$Mv*x rtr).rrIl€'..

DIRECT OR.GENERAT
go Dr. Josephine Ahama,OGI4z

DIRECTOR.CS
ICPAK No. 99S0

Dr, Dinah Mwinz hD, CBS
cHAIIUTERSON oF THE BOARD

20:!I iill \D r:) si\a:r+
)

Date Date
,s f-tj"-*I .,r.

Date
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16. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YE^,R ENDED 30 JLII'JE 202

Retained
earnings/
(Deficit)

KES.

Total

5,s22,04s,668

448,000,000

(16A,174,s47)
(1,316, s43)

(73,374.639)

KES.

5,716,438.962

i 25,00'j,O00

(,73,7;,,-.'977)

(2;,i.:152)

G.O.K Grants (net increase)

PrioI year adjustments

:ju rlrlu s/(Deficit) for the year

i hutiiized Donor funds

s at 30th June 2023

(2 5 5,63 3,03 2 )

i2 t-,357,793)

5,558,r64,885

Capital/
Development

Funds
KES.

(488,666,869)6,OtO,712,s37As at 30th June 2021

(l,316,543)

(78,374,639)

(13,7 40,977)

448,000,000

(160.174.547)

G.O.K Grants (net increase)

A n.r oltrzatlon
l)t ior year adjustments

Sr"rrplus/(Deficit) for the Year

tlnutilized Donor funds

(582,O99,O28)6,298,537,990As at 30th June 2O22

r 2 5,000,000

(283,2s2)

(2ss,633,032)

(27,357,793\

(865,373,r05)6,423,s37,990
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Kenya Industrial Research and Development Institute (KIRDI)
{nnual Reports and Financial Stalements
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I 17. STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Note 2022/2023
KES.

CASH FLOW FRON' OPERATING ACTTVITIES
Operating surplus,/(deficit)
Adjustment for items not involving movemenls of cash
Deferred grant income
Depreciation expenses t 3

prior year adjustments 26

(2 55,633,032 (7U,3 74,(i39

I .19,29I,548
(160,174,517)

160,17.1,5{7

(27 357

2,771,970

272,992,844

700,000
38s,482,090

793) (13,7{0,977

2O2t/2022
KES.

I,554,7t3:

(147,(;15,458
700,00(

12\ ,97 t ,79)

(283,2s2) 0,.-i 16,sJ3

Project funds surplus

Surplus/Deficit s before working capital chang,es

WORKINC CAPITAL CHANGES
Increase/Decrease in inventories
Decrease/ (increase) in Accounts
receivable
Increase (decrease) in provisions
Decrease (increase) in Accounts payable

Changes in Working capital

(r33,982,529) (93,432,1s9

t7

l6
))

20&23

'21

18

?1

Net cashflow generated from Operating Aclivities

Cash Flow in lnvesting Activities:
Additions to Property, plant and
Equipment (Net)
Cash flow from financing:
Capital grants

Donor project funds increase/(decrease)

Nel cash generated from financing activitles

Net increase/ decrease in cash and cash equivalenls

Cash at the beginning of the year

Cash at the end of the yt,ar I 5

(677,549,821) (61:1,556,617

l 2 5,000,000

I 3,6I 6,8 I6

448,000,00(

509 rJ03

t38,616,8r6 443,490,19"

66r,946,904

527,964,375

0 0,968,630)
24,3 59,954
13,391,324

(23,388,876

(rr6,82l,03s

(4

(286,tt8 7,,15 5

3l I,2.17,.101

24,3 59,95,
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8 STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BI,]DGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JI.]NE 2023

0riglnal
Budget Adiustment Final Budget

Actual on
comparable

basis vanance
Revenue KES KES. KES. KES. KES.

Rendering of services 26,000,000 26,000,000 21,066,056 (4,933,944) -19

Govemment grants 617,430,000 617,430,000 580,730,000 (36,700,000) 6

Total income 643,430,000 643,430,000 601,796,056 (41,633,944) 6

Expenditure KES, KES. KES. KES. KES.

Use ol Goods and services 75,630,000 75,630,000 143,490,390 (67,860,390) -90
Compensation of
Employees 551,800,000 551,800,000 546,31 1,493 5,488,507

Board expenditure 7,000,000 7,000,000 13,751,253 (6,751,253) -96

Repairs and mainlenance 9,000,000 9,000,000 31,942,197 (22,942,197) -255

Total Expenditure 643,430,000 643,430,000 735,495,333 (92,065,333) -'14

Surplus/(Deficit) (133,699,277)

Recurrent Bu et

Performance
difference

Budgel Variances

i) Rendering of services
The shortfall in revenue targets was a result of the low funding on the operations
and due to reduced budgetary allocation.

ii) Use of goods and services
The negative variance of KIS. 67.8 million is a result of underfunding of Ihe recurrenl
budget to sustain normal operations.

iii) Remuneration of Directors and Board exlrenses
The negative variance of KES.6.7 million was due to inadequate funding of the line
item with unanticipated increase in activities that demand the attention of the Board
including approving the p<jlicf instruments.

iv) Repairs and maintenance
The expenditure was necessitated by rehabilitation of the machinery and equipment to
restore to proper working condition.

nol.
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Development Budget
STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMO UNTS. DEVELOPMENT BUDGET 20222023

Ad ustment Final Bu et

KES KES.

375,000,000 125,000,000

KES. KES,

375,000,000 120,000,000

0 000,000

't25,000,000

5

Budget Variances

V) Development grants

The National Treasury released KES. 125.0 million during the year against an initial budget
ofKes.500 million.

vi) Construction of buildings

The main contractor had raised additional fee notes for main works for South B projecl
during the year. An additional sum of KES..187,700,497 was raised in favor of the Main
Contractor on the South B. proiect, being approval for idle equipment resulting from an
arbitration award which had not been anticipaied in the financiai year.

Vii) Rehabilitation and Renovarion of plant, Machinery and Equipmenr

The Positive variance is due to late disbursement of funds and changes in approved budget
which had not been anlicipated as per plans

n(

Actual on
comparable

basis
Performance

difference vanance

Revenue KES

Original
Budget_

KES. KES

Develo ment rants 125,000,000 0

Expenditure KES. KES.

Construction of Buildinos

500,000,000

495,000,000

KES

140,732,056 (20,732,056) -17

E UI menUmachine

Rehabilitation and
Renovation of plant

5,000,000 3,167,912 1,832,088

Total 500,000,000 (37s,000,000) 143,899,968 (r8,899,968)
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19. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note I General Information

'fhe Kenya lndustrial Research and Development lnstilute (KIRDI) is a stalutor
research organization which was eslablished under the Science and Technolog)'Act
Cap 250, 1979 (later repealed and replaced by the Science, Technology ant

lnnovation Acl 2013) and currentll, ,r0.. KIRDI Act 2022. KIRI)I is the counlrl"-
principal national institution responsible for industrial research and developmen
and don'ricilt'd under the Ministrl' of Industry, Trade and Co-operatives' It i

nrandatcd lo carr), out Research and Development in induslrial and allied

technologies including, Civil Engineering, Ir{echanical Enginec'ring, Textil
Technologl', Electrical Engineering, Mining, Power Res<lurces, Chemical Engine ering,

Induslrial Chemistry, Food Technology, Ceramics, Informalion and Communication
Technologies (lCT) and Ceramics. The Institute's mission is to undertake Industrii
Rcst'arch, Tcchnology and Innovation and disseminate findings thal will have a

positive impact on national development. As well, its vjsion is to be a Centre o
Ercellencc in Industrial Research, Technology & Innovation.

Note 2. Statement of Compliance and Basis of preparation

The financial statcments have been prepared on historical cost basis excepl

measuremenl at re-valued amounts of certain items of property plant

equipment, and impaired assets at their estimated recoverable amounts
liabilities at their prescnt value.

I'o

anu
an

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Publi

Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. ir

also requires the management to exercise iudgement in the process of applying th
lnslitute's accounting policies. The areas involving higher degree of judgement c

complexity, or n,here assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statemenls, are disclosed in Note 3 of the financial statements.

The Financial stalements have been prepared and presented in Kenya shillingt
rvhich is thc lunctional currency andreporting currency of the Institute.
Thc Financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFN{ Acl, thc

State Corporations Act and International }\rblic Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS

Thc accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied to all thc years

presented.
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T

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Note 3. Significant Accounting Policies

a) Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the
measuremenl at re-valued amounts ol certain items of propertyr plant and
equipmenl, marketable securities and financial instruments at fair value, impaired
assets at their estimaled recoverablc anrounts and actuarially determined liabilities
at their present value. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimates
and assumptions. It also requires tnanagelnent to exercise judgement in the process
of applying the lnstitute's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or compleity, or where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the financial statements, are disclosed in the Notes. The financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with thc I)FI\,I Act, the State Corporations Act, and
International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The accounting policies
adopted have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

The financial Statements have been preparcd in accordance witl.t
International Public Sector Reporting standards (IPSAS) under the historical cost
convention except where otherwise stated in the Accounting policies below. In
compliance with Public Finance l\{anagemt'nt Act 2012, the established Public sector
accounting standards Board, PSASB published the Standards which took effect for
the financial year ended 30'h June 201-1. The Financial Statements are prepared on
accrual basis. Where necessary, comparativ(, figures for the predous financial year
have been reconfigured to conform to required changes in presentation.

(b) Currency

The financial statements have been prepared ard presented in Kenya shillings,
which is the functional axd reporting currcncy of the Institute.

{e) Property, Plant and Equipment

The fixed assets are stated at cost or as revalued on existing use basis from when
the institute started self accounting, i.e. 1., July, I980.

8
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All property, plant and equipment are staled at cost less accumulated depreciati I

and impairment losses. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction f^r
nil or nominal consideration the asset is initially measured al its I'air value.

Gains and losses on disposal of propertl,, plant and Equipmenl are delermincd bv
reference to their carrying amount in determining

operating surplus. On disposal of revalued ass(,ts, the revaluation surplus relating to
that asset are transferred to retained earnings.

(d) Depreciation

Provision is made for depreciation on the straight-line method de'signed to rr.rite oll
the original cosl or valuation of fixed assets

other than land, and work in progress over the actual life of the asset. A whr'
year's depreciation is charged on assets acquired nine months or more prior to t
closure of the financial year and none to those acquired

three monlhs or less to the end of the financial year. The annual rates for th,J
purpose are: -

1

2

3

1

5

Building......
N,lachines .. . .

l\lotor vehicles ....................
Office furniture & equipment
(-ompu Iers

')o/

12.So/u

25o/o

12.5%

30.A

(e) Revenue

The major source of income of this institute are the grants front the Governme-'
and the nominal charges of analysis fees from industrial manufacturers, potenti
entrepreneurs who need laboratory reports on their products and charge serr.iccs
offered to micro, small and medium enterprises. Income is recognized on i
accrual basis.

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other government entities a

measured at fair value and recogniZed on obtaining control of lhe asset (cash,
goods, services and property) if the transfer is free from conditions and it
probable that the economic benefits or service potential related to the asset w1..
flow to the entity and can be measured reliably.

I
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T (f) Bad Debts

Bad debts may be written-ol'f on approval b1, the ttoard as guided by the institute's
Finance Policies and Procedures and the regulalion of The PFN1 Act, 2012.

(g) Stores and Inventory

Stock and inventories is measured at the lower ol cost or net realisable valuation
with the exception of donations n,hich is rt,ported at revaluation. Loose tools
acquired as donation are amortizcd annualll at a uniform rate over the period of
their expected useful life.

(h) lnsurance cost

Annual insurance costs are accountcd for rvholll,in the year of commencement of
covers that expire within two months alter end ol financial year and proraled
otherwise.

(i) RetfuementBenefits,/Gratuity

The Institute operates a Retirement Benelit Scheme rvhich is managed by Trustee
Board under the Retirement Benefils Rt'gulations (RBA) regulations. Further monthly
remittances are made to a custodian lor staff ser\ring on Contract Terms which is
eventually paid as gratuity at the expir), of thc Contracl.

0) Government grants

Recurrent and Development grants harre been accounted for in the Statement of
Financial Performance in the year rect'ived. Capital grants are accounted for over the
periods necessary to match them w,ith the related costs which they are intended to
compensate on a systematic basis.

(k) Accountsreceivable

Accounts receivable are stated at anticipated realizable value.

0) Accounts payable

Accounts payable are stated at nominal value

(m) Budget information
lo
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The annual budget is prepared on accrual basis, and all planned costs and inco
are presented in seperate statements as recurrent and development budgets
determine the operating needs of the Institute.

rO

The basis difference in preparation and presentation would require reconciliati l
between aclual and comparable amounts and the amount presented as seperi l
additonal financial stalemenl in the statement of comparison of budget and actr'^l
amounts.

(n) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank.
Bank account balances includes amounts held at commercial banks at the end of t
financial year.

(o) Research and development costs

The Entity expenses research costs as incurred. Development costs on an individl
project are recognized as intangible assets when the Entity can demonstrate:

F The technical feasihilitl'of completing the asset so that the asset urill be arrailable I

use or sale

> IIs intcntion to complcte and its ability to use or sell the asset

D How the asset will generate future economic benefits or service potential

D The availability of resources to complete the asset

The abilitl,to measure reliably the expenditure during development.
Following initial recognition of an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulat
amortization and accumulaled impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when
developmenl is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized over the perir
of expected future benefit. During the period of development, the assel is tested f
impairment annually with any impairment losses recognized immediately in surplus or
deficit.

(p) Unused Project grants

Unused projcct fund surpluses are transferred turevenusreserves after completion of the
projects.

ll
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONtiNUCd)

Note 4. Transfers from Government

2022 023

b) Transfers from Ministries, De rtments and A encies (MDAs)

sl ate De t for Indust

Note 5. Grants & Subsidies from Donors

2O2t/2022

Unconditional ants KIS. KES

Recurrent rants-o erational s80,730,000 617,430,000

Deferred rant lncome 0 t60,174,547

Total 580,730,OO0 777,604,547

2O2t/2022
Tolal transfers

2022/2023

Amount
recognized in
Capital fund

Amount
recognized to
statement of

financial
performance

Entity sending the
Crant

KESKESKES KES.

1.065,430,000705,730,000580,730,000 r 2 5,000 000

I,065,430,000705,730,000r25,OO0,000580,730,000Total

2022/2023 2O2t/2022

KES KES

Pro ect fund recei tS 66,561,4 s 5 20,9r9,r ss

Deferred anl income 13,740,977 18,2 s0,780

Total ao302,432 39,169,935

t?
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 6. Renderin Services

Note 7. Rental revenue

Note 8. Otler income

2022 2023 2O2r/2022

Services fees KES KES

sis fees and consultanAnal I B,564 639 19,t83 028

2022/2023 202r 2022

KES KES

erat lease recei tSo 720 472 o

Total 720,472 o

2022 023 2021 2022
rncomes KES. KES

Commission and fees I 780,94 5 ) 129,518
Increase in stock (stores ain)

Total t,780 945 2, r29,5 r 8

I3
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t
Note 9. Use of oods and Services

2022/2023 2021/2022

KES

Transporl operation expenses

KES.

5,577,?50 3,586,844

Postal and telecom expenses 3,2 7{,934 2,s08,3 78

Telephone expenses 2,806,748

Official enterlainment

3,71 8,901

7,83 r,8'17 5,380,650

Electricity 10,263,728 9.5 78,843

Gas purchase 2,618,366 2,914,928

Water and conservancy 2,459,326 I ,093,34 s

Travelling and subsistence 19,155,190 0

Publishing and printing 2.!)5 3,660 1.843.728

Purchase of consumables s,239,817 5,5 S1,601

Uniform and clothing 29 t,566 0

Ubrary expenses 2,I 29,583 2,387,785

Purchase of stationery 6,699,8 r 5 s.293.129

Advertising and publicity 2,380,538 3,r 71,606

Show expenses and market research 2,806,1 91 1,392,25r

Rent and rate(non-residential) .1,I 97,105 r,382,385

Training expenses 1,699,94 r 0

Computer expenses 7, r 88,314 4,553,404

Misc. and et$€r-tharg€s 847,974 1,059,64 7

Contribution to other bodies 1,469,906 708,O22

Insurance of property 8,222,760 ?,142,455

Provision for audit fee 700,000 700,000

1.1
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Laboralo chemicals

Note lo. Frn lo Costs

7,299 66r 6,229 136

Contracted guards & cleanrng sen4ces I9,077,s8r 13,667,564

rofessional servicesContracted 1,751,020 1,969,390

Decrease in stock (Note l6) 2,771,970 1 ,5 54,78 5

Research feasibilit studies & ro ecl s 7,863,446 5,807,278

Totals r43,490,390 47,283,902

2022/2023 2O2t/2022

KES. KES.

Basic sal 284,834,571 314,389,529

House allowance 96,453,O27 93,949,157

ersonal allowanceOther 3 5,02 5,604 39,548,098

Medical risk Allowarce 9,81 5,190 10,229,236

Medical insurance 49,505,171 37,31s,524

Pass e and Leave 7,722,084 4,829,000

ensesTr Ex 0 4,740,230

ersonal accident(GPA)Grou life & 4,372,342 1,607,262

Fees commission and Honoraria r,978,900 8,698,700

Pension, Gratuity and NSSF 56,604,604 65,179,025

and SubsistenceTrave o ?5.O37.207

TOTAL 546,3r r,493 605,522,968

15
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I
Nore I l. Board ex enditure

Nore 12. Re irs and Maintenance

Nole 13. De reciation and amortization

2022/2023

r,692 600

960,000

l3 751 253

2022/2023

2021 2022

KES KES.

siili Allowance 4,980,000 6,020,000

1,586,238 2,372,121Trar el cost s

Hos italit costs \ ,97 7 ,632 1,47s,139

2,554,783 926,840Conferences and seminars

Dail),subsistence 3,731,000

Remuneration & honoraria 707,097

Totals rs,232,r97

2022/2023 2O2r/2022

KES.

I\,laint. of office, furniture & e ul 5,938,990

I\4aint. of build. & stations-non residential

r 0,433,736

I I,997,860

KES.

7,346,429

lant machineMaint. of &e ul 6,595,98 5 s,886,296

pense-motor vehiclesMainl. ex 2,9I4,616 3,64 7,380

TOTAL 3r,942,t97 22,819,095

2O2r/2022

KES. KES

mentUIPro ert , Plant and I ,19,29 r,548 160,t74,547

t6
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Note 14. Grants and Subsidies

Note l5a Cash and Cash uivalents

Nore l5b s of Cash and cash ivalenl

2022/2023 2021/2022

KES. KES

Donor project funds utilized 52,944,639 2 S,4 28,9 58

2022/2023 2021/2022
KES. KES

Current Account

Nat jonal bank of Kenya 6,474,622 I I,958,064

Absa Bank 6,667,859 588,3I 6

Others

Mpesa Account 248,843 I1,813,574

r 3,391,324 24,359,954

Account 2022/2023 2O2r/2022

number KES KES.

National bank of Kenya-HQ main Account 01003000903200 464,889 8,590,072

National bank of Kenya-LDC A,/c 01003002829200 131,693 383,243

National bank of Kenya-EDSC A/c 01003002832800 392,0r 0 121,1l5

National bank of Kenya-Kisumu A/c 01003000903202 2,590,94I I,570,141

Nat ional bank of Kenya-LSC A/c 0r 003005406800 5l,948 847,597

AbsajankA,lc 0708004898 6,667,859 588.316

National bank of Kenya-NIIC Account 01003005406700 2,843,141 44 5,896

Mpesa 681 72 5 248,843 I1,813,574

TOTAL 13,39r,324 24,3s9,9s4
17
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Note l6(a) Receivables from Non-exchan e transactions

Nore l6(b Reconciliation for im irment on Receivables (non exchan e)

?o22/2023 2O2r/?O22

KES. KES.

of Indu strializationMinist 2,3 26,000

imprest (overseas)Travel o

Tem or lm rest

Provision for doubtful debts

71 ,000

4,703 66s

deposit-KisumuElectricity 308,138

2 2(;,3 2 6,000

4,703,66s

26s,900

308,r 38

1,3.16 ,:109

osit-South C & EldoretElectricir de 50,000 50,000

ent to contractorsAdvance a 0 47,451,535

TOTAL 7,458,803 24O,45t,647

2022/2023 2O2t/2022
KES KES

of the earAt the be lnnln 280,451,647 r 32,836,189

rovision in theAdditional ear 7 r,000 227,039,929

Recovered duri the ear (273,063.844) (79,421,471)

Written off dur the ear

At the end of the ear 7,4s8,803 2AO,45t,647
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c) anal sis for Receivables

Note 17. Stores and Inventories

Decrease in stock for general stores held was KES. 2,771,97O as stock
adjustment.

Duration 2022/2023 2O2r/2022
KES % KES. %

71,000 l"k 22 7,938,309 8t%Under one year

l -2 years 7,38 7,803 99% 52,5l 3,3 38 t9%

Total 7,458,803 24o,45t,647

2022/2023 202t/202?

KES KES

General Stores-Consumables 863,203 3,63 s,r 73

Loose tools-spare parts

Total 863,203 3,635.173
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T

Note 18 Property , Plant and Equipment

LAND WORK IN

PROGRESS

MACHINERY

& €OUIPi'ENT

ITOTOR

VEHICLES

FURNITURE

& FTTTINGS

COMPUTERS

&
EOUIPi'ENT

BUILDIiIGS TOTAL

)osu Value KES KES KES. KES. KES. KES KES KES

\s at 117/202'1 26 865.000 3 996.660,548 1,088,221,014 863,856,365 39.625,000 51,375,564 88,671668 6,155,275,159

qdditions 35{,484,863 251,687,339 475,240 150,650 606,798,092

Prior year Adjust 5,809,546 1,393,104 7,202,650

As at 301612022 25,865,000 4,351,145,411 1,088,221,014 1,'121,353,250 39,625,000 51,850,804 90,2'.15,422 6,769,275,901

Additions 674,381,909 881,940 2,285,972 677,v9,821

As at 3016/2023 26,865,000 5,025,527,320 1.088,221,0'14 t,1?1,3!:,250 39,625,000 52,732,744 92.5C1.394 1,446,825,722

Depreciation and
lmpairment

As at 1 l7 12021 1535 144

Depreciation/Amortz 383,786

Prior year Adjust

As at 30/612022 1,918,930

Depreciation/Amortz 383,786

185,510,284 565,084,409 29,925,000 38,521,468 65,419,230 885,995,535

21,764,420 114 926 531 9,700,000 2,908,376 10,491,434 160,174,547

726 195 417,930 1,144,125

207,274,704 680,73i,135 39,625,000 41,429,844 76,328,594 ',1,047,314,207

21,76/,420 113,369,958 2.941,952 10,831,432 149,291,548

As at 301612023 2,302,716 229,039,124 794,107,093 39,625,000 14,371.796 87,160,026 1,196,605,751

Nel book values

As at 301612022 24,946,070 4,351,145,411 880,946,310 440,616,115 10,420,960 r3,886,828 5,721,961,69,

24,552,284 5,025,527,320 859,18'r,890 327,246,151As at 301612023

20
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The capitalwork in progress expenditure relates to on-going RTI laboratories construction proJect in Nairobi South B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note l8(b

Property, plant and Equipment includes the following assets that are fully depreciated

Cost/
Valuation

Normal annual
depreciation

charge

Plant and Machine 2 r 4,393,586 26,799,198

Ir{otor Vehicles 39,62 s,000 9,906,2 50

Com ters and related E ul ment 5 5,3 76,326 16,612,897

Furniture, Office e ut ment and fitt s 29,197,1?8 3,649,6211

Total 338,592,040 56,967,986

Note 19. Research and Development projects

These is composed of expenditure amounting KES. 160,424,504 transferred from Development
vote to R & D on recognilion that R & D proiects will generate future economic bgrgfitg.

The Institute intends to patent its research discoveries which includes prototype development,
designs and pilot plants.

Cost/ Value
Accumulated
Depreciation NBV

K-ES KES KES.

Land 26,865,000 ?,302,716 ?4,562,284

Buildin s I,088,22 I ,014 229,039,124 859,t 8r,890

Plant and Machine I,1 21,3 53.2 50 794,107,O93 327,246,t57
Motor Vehicles 39,62 5,000 39,62 s,000

uters and relatedCom mentul 92,50r,394 87,160,026 5,341 ,368

ment and firtin sFurniture Office e ul 52,732,744 44,37 ),796 8,360,948
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAI STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 20. Accounts pa able

b) Aging analysis for payables

Note 21. Unused Project funds

National llesearch fund

Sea wecd project-Blue economy

ICIPE Project

Un-Foru(lation UNFS-Clean stove

Socla lake Project-KWS

GECKO Projeo-Denmark Tekniske Univ.

SolCool Dry Projecr-BMEL/BLE

UNIDO-IBPP Energy technologies

CIZ kenya-Agri jobs

Mycotile project - Ir4ycelium & agri waste

0

t,784,705

409,rr5

41,3 56

2,2 5 r ,860

I I 7,818

2,102,269

s,216,1 58

852,254

7,784, r-OS

409,115

160,004

2,2 5l,860

187,8i8

52,047

1,307,477

24,812

198,940

2022/2023 2021 2022
KES. KES.

Pa roll cledr"rctions 2B 6?7 471 3 338,126
CMiscellaneous de losr ts a 2 899 732 0

Otlrer Creditors 704 335,547 196,833 898
Current F,/ Retention 9,401 644 0
TOTAI- 745 264 394 200 172,O24

Duration 2022/2023 202r 2022
KES. KES.

Under one ear 73 5,46 5,894 99% 200,172,o24 100%
1-2 ears I 798,500 1%

Total 745,264,394 200,r72,o24

2022/2023 2O2t/2022
KES. KES.

22
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\,Vorld bank Africa - ACE Il PTRE

Institute of global food-Sea forth

LVCT Health project

ACTS-BIue empowerment

Altprorrecho Resea Ctr-stove efficiency

Giz-Clean stove surveillance

Donor collaborative projects

The net illcrease for project grants hekl in the year was I(ES. 13,616,8I6.

Note 22. Provisions
2O22/2023 2021/2022

KSH KSH
Provision for Audit fee at the beginning 3,3 58,000 3,3 s8,000
Aclditional for the year 700,000 700,000
Provision utilised in the ear ( 700,000)
Balance at ear-end 4,O58,000 3,358,000

40,3 90

I 96,95 7

89,400

553,138

3 8 9,866

19,950

I4,040,951

79,1 90

2,021,8 3 1

89,400

4,321,524

Note 23. Retention rnoney

These are retention ll'lonies on bills settlecl for constl'uction contracts rvhich are helcl forlrole than a.year pencling proiects completion ancl expir.y of ciefects llabilrty perioa
Llor'vever, additional retentioll-for the curi.ent periocl amour-rting to Kshs.9,4ol,644 has
been considered as cttrrent liability while the bilarice of Kshs.gT:512,72g Consiclerecl asnon-current liability.

TOTAL 27,357,793 13,740,977

2022 2023 ?021/2022
I(ES. KES.

Balance at the beginning 2s7.123,O09 242,301,310
Add itions during the year 9,40I,644 14,82 1,699
Transfer to a ables (159,6t 0 280)
Closing balance r 06,914,3 73 257,t23,OO9

?3



Kenya Industrial Research and Development lnstitute (KIRDI)
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended 306 June 2023

NoIe 24. Capital,z Development funds

The KES. 6,423,537,990 stated as Capital funds is the net accumulation of Development releases
going way back to 1980 when the Institute began self -Accounting.

These represenls grants received from the exchequer to finance acquisition of capital assets and
other expenses related to research and development activities.

Note 25. Retained earnings/ Accumulated deficit

These represents Ihe lnstitute's accumulated funds Account as balances brought forward for
revalualion reserves and the accumulated deficit arising from the income andlxpenditure
account.

Note 26. Prior year adjustments
Prior year adiuslment are made againsl accumulated surplus/deficit of the retained earnings
for expenses related to previous year.

Note 27. Recurrent and Development expenditure
The expenditure is financed by both recurrent and development funds received from
Government of Kenya.

Note 28. Related party transactions

At the closing of the financial year the institute had not received KES. 4l .6 million being part
of the budgetary allocation for the year from the parenl Ministry.

Note 29. Conringenr liabilities

At the year-end there were no contingent liabllities and subsequent events foreseeable

24



Kenya Industrial Research and Development lnstitute (KIRDI)
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended 30c June 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continucd)

Nole 30. Cash generated,/Used in operations

Description

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year

Adjusted for :-

Contribution to Provisions

Prior year adjustments

Working capital adjustments :

Decrease/ (increase) in Receivables

Decrease in inventory

lncrease in Accounts payable

Deferred grant income

Net cash flow generated/used in Operating Activities

2022/2023

KES.

(2 5 5,63 3,03 2)

700,000

(283,252)

272,992,844

2,771,970

385,482,090

(L3,740,977)

2O2t/2022

KES

(78,3 74,639)

700,000

(1,3 r 6,543)

(147,61s,4s8)

1,5 54,785

12r,971,797

0 8,2s0,780)

392,289,643 (r2 r 330 838

Note 3i Financial risk management

The Institute has no significant risk attributed to accounts receivable. Services offered to
clients are primarily on cash basis. Advances and prepayrnents are managed within
approved policy parameters.

Note 32 Capital comrnitments

Authorised and contracted for irq the proposed construction of RTI laboratories in Nairobi
south B at a cost of KES. 5.5 Billion.
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I9 APPENDICES

APPTNDIX l:PROGRISS (lN IrOl.l.O\1r l,P /ll Al-iI)l'tOR RLCOMMINDAl 10.'i:,

Thc follolving is the summarl of issucs raisecl b1 the external auclitor, and ntanagemcnt conllltents
that were provided to the audrtor. \\'e have nominated focal pt'rsons to rcs<lh e the r.arious issues
as shorvn belorv with the associated time frame \\'ilhin \\,hich rve expect the issues to be rt'soh ecl.

Focal Point
Person to
resolve the
issue (Name
and
designation)

Ref. No
on lhe
External
Audit
Reporl

D- CSI.0

Issue/
Observation
from Auditor

Basis of
Qualification

Recognition ol'
l)efi'rrcd Granl
Income ol KES.
l(i0,17-l,il7.

Procurement
dcpartment

'2.O

Nla\nagenlcnt ( ontinuous
lo ('ngage thc National
'l reaslrry lo priorit iz('
f'unding thc Instilul('
oporations and
completion of Solllh B
proje( t lo support in
gcn('rating r(.\'cnuc.

Iuanagcmenl comnlIt('d
lo rt value thc Inslitut('
l\lotor Vchr(les

Lack ol'
Rr'\':rlualion ol'
trlotor Vchi(les

Poor Financial
P0rlormanc(l

Direct or /
Board ol'
llirect()rs

1.0

Director /
Boarci of
Dircctors

Nlanagcm('nl
slill continuil)
to engagc $ilh
the National
Trensury antl
Parcnl IUinistD,
ol improYing, thc
Inslitutc Bu(lgi'l
allocation

Waiting
approval

1.0

Basis of
conclusion
l-ack of Risk
lUana!l,cm0nt
Policy

Management Comments

Ksh 1(i0,1 7 1,.r-17 tlt'lcrrcd
grant in('onte Arc rnonit's
rt't t'ivt'd as cilpilill gr nIs
being iirmotizc(l itl
rt'specl ()f capilal nss('t s.
The r:r'idcnce providt'tl is
in the forn tlt
dcpreciation \\ orkings frlr
individual assct s.

A dral t risk manag('lrtnt
policy is in place a\\'iliting
approval bl thc Brrard. lt
has bcen dt'velopcci in
linr $ ith tho 'l rrasur)'
circular 4o. :l/2(Xx) an(l
PFNI Act R€gulations 20 I .-)

Status:
(Resolved/ Not
resolved

Rcsolrtd

Rcv [ralion l]as
sinc(' becn dono

Timefranre:(Pul
a dale when ),o
expecl tht issu
to be resolved)

R r.solr r,ti

Rcsolvod

I ) (' rs

To ll(' I)on(' in
Quarlcr ol F)
'202.t / 2)

6)
Dr. -Ing. Ca yango

Signature:

DIRECTOR. GENERAL
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I

Project Tittle
Projoct
Numb€r Donor

Period/
Duration

Donor
commitment

Separate
Donor
reportinE

Consolidated
in the
Financial
statements

Construclion of
lndustrial Research &

lnnovalion

Laboratories - KIRDI

South B 1 175101000 N/A '10 years N/A No Yes

APPENDIX ll: PRO ECTS IMPLEMENTED BY KIRDI

APPENDIX III: STATUS OF PROJECT
COMPLETION

Source of
fundsProject Name

Total
Project
cost (KES.
Million)

Total
expended
to date

Completion
70 to date

Budget
(KES.
Mlllion)

Actual
(KES.
Million)

Conslruction of
lndustrial Research &
lnnovation
Laboralories - KIRDI

South B 5,500 4,333 80 125 674.3 G.o. K
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APPENDIX IV: INTER-ENTITY TRANSFERS

Breakdown of Transfers from the State Department of Industry

reu / TaELUI

Capiral
Fund

Deferred
income

Re(eiv
able

Orher
s

Total
Transfers

Srare Dcpl
for Induslr\ t9 /o8/ ) J Reaurrenl il -lil i(x ) ; I ,-l 1l ;0{)

5t..t;l,ioo I I ,.1ll.-r(x)

;l l -,1, -,r ,0 :t..r;l,l(n)

rl.lll.i(x) 'il,lll,.-rO{)

ll l il .r(X) ,l l;1,,(n)

5t.t5l.:oo
Stalr Dcpr
for lndustr] to/ot\ / : ) Re(urrcnl

Rt(rrrreDt

; t,{;_',ioo
Stale Depl
for lnduslr) l8/()0/..1l I L-l;1, ,0r)

Srarr Drpt
for lndustr') ot/tt/)2 Recurrcnl 5t,-ll?.;00
Srare l)cpt
for lndustr\ Q/t!/22 Recurrenl 5 t,-l:2,30{)

Srare Depl
for Induslr) )8/ t2/ )2 Rccurrent ;l -l i l,.-r0o -'I,l-'-' ;rx)

il,.l;1.5(x)

;t,-l;l,iu{}
Stale Depl
for lndustr\ 03/o2 /23 Rc(urrent 5 t.l5?,300

Slate Depl
for lnduslr') nb/oi/ 23 Recurrenl 51,-l',?,;0()

Slale Di:pl
for lndustr) t1/ot / )1 Re(urrenl 5t,-t:ir,50o

srare Dept
for lnduslr, 05/o5/ !3 Recurrenl

J9,l I r), l(;;

J'r,-'ll),1(;7

I I5.(D0,00
0

;80.730,O00

slale Depr
for Induslr) ot/06/ !l Recurrenl
Statr Drpt
for lndusu'\ ' /oG/ 23 Recurrent

Statr DcpI
for lnduslr\ oi /to/?2 De\eloprrent

l2 5,000.
o00

Total
l25,OOO,0
oo

MDA
Transferrin

Dale
received
as per
Bank
slalemeDl

'Ioral
Amounl
(Kts)

Slalenrent of
tinancial

Nature:
RecuIIent/
Developmen

rants

where Recorded Re nized

rfornrance

END

Funds

39 219 | 6{i

ll) 2t1) I (;7

:t9 ll!) I (i;

t.15,000 0(x)

70s 73 ooo
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